
Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666  Fax: 01653 696801
www.ryedale.gov.uk working with you to make a difference

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Minutes of meeting held on 17 January 2017 (Pages 3 - 7)

3 Urgent Business 
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be 
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of 
the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declarations of Interest 
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of 
Conduct.

Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council 
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest.  This requirement is 
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation. 

5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee (Pages 8 - 9)

6 16/01881/MFUL - Spaniel Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe (Pages 10 - 18)

7 16/01950/MFUL - Common Farm, Upper Helmsley (Pages 19 - 33)

8 16/01870/FUL - Land Adj To Dhekelia, Moor Lane, Broughton (Pages 34 - 46)

Please Contact Ellis Mortimer/Karen Hood

Extension 271/386

Date of Publication 6 February 2017

E Mail ellis.mortimer@ryedale.gov.uk; 
karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday 14 February 2017 at 6.00 pm (Following the Licensing Committee)
 
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

     Agenda

Public Document Pack

http://www.ryedale.gov.uk/


9 16/01887/73A - Land At Corner Of Chapel Road And Forkers Lane, Settrington 
(Pages 47 - 65)

10 16/01839/MFUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton (Pages 66 - 93)

11 14/00949/FUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton (Pages 94 - 109)

12 16/01931/CLEUD - Whey Carr Farm, Main Street, Sand Hutton (Pages 110 - 122)

13 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent. 

14 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers. (Pages 123 - 129)



Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 17 January 2017

Planning Committee

Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
Tuesday 17 January 2017

Present

Councillors  Paul Andrews (Substitute), Cleary, Farnell, Frank (Vice-Chairman), 
Goodrick, Hope, Maud, Elizabeth Shields, Thornton and Windress (Chairman)

Substitutes: Councillor P J Andrews

In Attendance

Samantha Burnett, Gary Housden, Ellis Mortimer and Anthony Winship

Minutes

120 Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Councillor Burr.

121 Minutes

Minutes of meeting held on 20 December 2016

Decision

That the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 20 December 2016 be 
approved and signed as a correct record

[For 7 Against 1 Abstain 2]

122 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 17 January 2017

123 Declarations of Interest

Councillor Item
Thornton 11
Elizabeth Shields 11
P Andrews 11
Farnell 6, 8
Frank 6
Hope 8
Windress 6

124 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted a list (previously circulated) of the 
applications for planning permission with recommendations thereon.

125 16/01839/MFUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton

16/01839/MFUL - Change of use of agricultural land to allow siting of 28no. 
holiday lodges in association with Canadian Fields campsite together with 
formation of site roads, car parking and turning areas and associated 
landscaping

Decision

SITE VISIT

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillors Farnell, Frank 
and Windress declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

Page 4



Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 17 January 2017

126 16/01250/MREM - Land South of Westgate, Old Malton, Malton

16/01250/MREM - Erection of 24no. four bedroom dwellings, 9no. three 
bedroom dwellings and 6no. two bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, 
parking, amenity areas and landscaping to include demolition and some 
rebuilding of existing site buildings (outline approval 14/00428/MOUTE dated 
24.03.2015 refers)

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - As recommended.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 1]

127 16/01659/MFUL  - York Meadows, Sheriff Hutton

16/01659/MFUL - Change of use of agricultural land to allow the formation of 
30no. static caravan pitches and 42no. touring caravan pitches with formation of 
crushed stone access tracks together with erection of extension to existing site 
office/amenity block and the provision of a play area (part retrospective)

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillors Farnell and Hope 
declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest. 

128 16/00072/OUT - Land At Golden Square, Low Marishes

16/00072/OUT - Erection of a rural workers dwelling

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

Page 5



Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 17 January 2017

129 16/01242/73A - Longhouse, Pottergate, Helmsley

16/01242/73A - Variation of Condition 12 of approval 12/00264/FUL dated 
27.06.2012 to state 'The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plan(s): Drawing no. 968_AR50_06A' - 
replacement of plan 968_AR50_03 - increase in roof height to allow for 
additional domestic storage areas (retrospective application).

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

130 Unauthorised Encampment at Kirby Misperton North Yorkshire

Members were updated on the unauthorised encampment at Kirby Misperton.

In December 2016 opponents of fracking established a camp near Third 
Energy's fracking site at Kirby Misperton in North Yorkshire.

The land occupied by the protesters is believed to be the property of Mr Gordon 
Gibb, the owner of the nearby Flamingoland complex and is beside a main road 
that would be used by Third Energy to access the drill site.

The Head of Planning & Housing advised the Planning Committee that the site 
would be monitored.

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillors Thornton, 
Elizabeth Shields and P Andrews declared a personal non pecuniary but not 
prejudicial interest.

Page 6



Planning Committee 5 Tuesday 17 January 2017

131 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

Proposed permanent exemptions to a 7.5 tonne weight limit at Malton and 
Norton level crossing.

The Head of Planning & Housing reported the receipt of a consultation letter 
from North Yorkshire County Council dated 6 January 2017 which was received 
by the District Council on 10 January 2017. The consultation deadline was 27 
January 2017.

The letter outlined that a temporary weight restriction on the Malton/Norton level 
crossing would include exemptions to a 7.5 tonne weight restriction operating a 
permit system to minimise any adverse effects on nearby local business.

Decision

DELEGATED TO HEAD OF PLANNING & HOUSING - Delegated authority to 
finalise the consultation response was granted to the Head of Planning & 
Housing in consultation with Members of Planning Committee and Malton and 
Norton Ward District Councillors.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

132 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted for information (previously 
circulated) a list which gave details of the applications determined by the Head 
of Planning & Housing in accordance with the scheme of delegated decisions.

133 Update on Appeal Decisions

Members were advised of the following appeal decisions:

Appeal ref: APP/Y2736/C/16/3146548 - Land at Partings Farm Ebberston 
Scarborough North Yorkshire YO13 9PA

Meeting Closed at 8:25pm

Page 7



14/02/17

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

16/01881/MFUL

Erection of a general purpose agricultural storage building

6

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Spaniel Farm Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

8HE 

16/01950/MFUL

Erection of an equestrian building to include 40no. stables and indoor 

exercise track

7

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Common Farm Upper Helmsley Malton YO41 1JX 

16/01870/FUL

Erection of detached two-bedroom dwelling with garden shed and 

formation of vehicular access (revised details to refusal 16/00973/FUL 

dated 13.09.2016)

8

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land Adj To Dhekelia  Moor Lane Broughton Malton YO17 6QJ

16/01887/73A

Variation of Condition 21 of approval 12/00809/73A dated 29.11.2012 to 

state that the approved plans shall be "619/21K Site Layout, 619/20D 

House Type Design, 619/22B Window Details Eaves Details and 619/23 

 Additional Door Details"

9

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land At Corner Of Chapel Road And Forkers Lane Settrington Malton 

North Yorkshire  

16/01839/MFUL

Change of use of agricultural land to allow siting of 28no. holiday lodges in 

association with Canadian Fields campsite together with formation of site 

roads, car parking and turning areas and associated landscaping

10

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Canadian Fields Gale Lane Nawton Helmsley YO62 7SD 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



14/02/17

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

14/00949/FUL

Erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp kitchen to serve camp 

cafe (retrospective application).

11

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Canadian Fields  Gale Lane Nawton York YO62 7SD

16/01931/CLEUD

Certificate of Lawfulness in respect of the use, building works or activity in 

breach of Condition 10 of approval 3/111/19C/FA dated 16.03.1993 began 

more than 10 years before the date of this application

12

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Whey Carr Farm Main Street Sand Hutton Malton YO41 1LB 

Page 9



___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

14 February 2017 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE 

 
PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING 

 

 

 
Item Number: 6 

Application No: 16/01881/MFUL 

Parish: Weaverthorpe Parish Council 
Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Mr Stephen Bannister 

Proposal: Erection of a general purpose agricultural storage building 
Location: Spaniel Farm Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

8HE 

 
 

Registration Date:        22 November 2016  
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  21 February 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 December 2016 

Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 
 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

Archaeology Section No objection  
Parish Council No objection  

 
Neighbour responses:       None 
 

 

SITE:  
 

The application site comprises of a farmstead, which is located between Weaverthorpe and Butterwick 
on the C356 road. The farmstead is located approximately 700m to the south of the classified road.  

There are two dwellings and a range of agricultural buildings at the farmstead together with a wind 

turbine on the eastern side.  The surrounding landscape is designated as an Area of High Landscape 
Value, being the Yorkshire Wolds. 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of a general purpose agricultural storage building.  
 

The application is to be determined by Planning Committee as the floor area of the building exceeds 

1000 square metres (1563 square metres). 
 

Members should note that a revised scheme has been submitted following comments that were made 

by Officer's regarding the siting of the proposed building. It  was considered that the original sit ing of 
the proposed agricultural building would be sited outside of what is currently considered to be the 

main farmstead. It  was originally proposed be positioned to the east of the existing track, in close 

proximity to the wind turbine. By virtue of the landform and the scale of the proposed building, it 
would be readily visible from outside the site, particularly when viewed from the C356 road.   

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

14 February 2017 

 

An alternative siting for the proposed building was suggested to the south of the existing agricultural 
buildings within the farmstead. This siting would ensure that the proposed building would be read in 

the context of  existing group of buildings within the site. 

 
The agent has therefore submitted a revised scheme, positioning the building to the south of the 

existing agricultural buildings, adjoining the westernmost existing building. The building has also 

been reduced in scale (previously 2009.34 square metres to 1563 square metres).  
 

The proposed building will measure 42.7 metres in width, 36.6 metres  in depth, 7 metres to the eaves 
and 13 metres to the ridge. It will be constructed of Juniper Green cladding to the walls and roofs. A 

galvanised steel door with a width of 7 metres m and a height of 7 metres is proposed on the eastern 

elevation.  
 

HISTORY: 
 
The site has an extensive planning history, including: 

 

• 08/00698/MFUL - Planning permission granted 29.09.2008 - Erection of a general-purpose 
agricultural storage building. 

 

• 11/00744/FUL - Planning permission granted 31.10.2011 - Erection of a 37.18m high (overall 

t ip height 53.88m) 330kw wind turbine to generate electricity for on farm use, together with 

associated access track, crane platform and sub-station. 
 

• 14/00251/FUL - Planning permission granted 29.04.2014 - Erection of an agricultural 
potato/grain store. 

 

• 15/01502/MFUL - Planning permission granted 22.02.2016 - Erection of a general purpose 
agricultural storage building. 

 
POLICY: 
 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 
 

Policy SP9 - Land Based Rural Economy 

Policy SP12 - Heritage 
Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 
Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 
National Policy Guidance  

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 
The main considerations in relation to this application are 

 
i.  The Principle of Development 

ii.  Size, scale and design of the proposed building 

iii.  Impact upon the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value 
iv. Highway safety 

Page 11



___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

14 February 2017 

 

v.  Impact upon neighbour amenity 
vi.  Archaeology  

vii.  Other matters 

viii.  Conclusion  
 

i .  The Principle  of Development 
 
Policy SP9 (The Land Based and Rural Economy) of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy is 

supportive of new buildings that are necessary to support land-based activity and a working 
countryside, including farming. Furthermore, Section 3 (Supporting a prosperous rural economy) of 

the National Planning Policy Framework is supportive of sustainable growth and expansion of all 

types of business and enterprise in rural areas, through well designed new buildings.  
 

The applicants operate a potato growing business, alongside straw and grain storage. The proposed 

building will allow for additional general purpose storage that facilitates the agricultural business.  It 
is considered that the principle of an agricultural storage building in this location and within the 

farmstead is considered acceptable. 

 

ii .  Size , scale  and design of the proposed building 
 

This siting of the proposed building would be read in the context of  existing group of buildings 
within the site, as it  adjoins the westernmost existing building within the farmstead. It is of a similar 

scale to the existing buildings within the farmstead.  

 
The design of the building is typical of a modern agricultural building, comprising enclosed sides 

under a pitched roof.  The metal sheeting proposed to be used on this building is considered to be 

representative of other modern agricultural buildings in Ryedale.  The dark green colour will also 
ensure that the building will be better integrated into the surrounding landscape and relate to the 

existing buildings on the site.  In view of the site of the proposed building being within close 
relationship to the existing farm buildings, along with its proposed dark green colouration, the 

development is considered to be acceptable in this location. 

 
iii .  Impact upon the Wolds Area of High Landscape Value 
 

Policy SP13 (Landscapes) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy seeks to protect the scenic 
qualities of the Yorkshire Wolds Area of High Landscape Value. There will be limited views of the 

proposal from the C356 and some views from the unclassified public highway to the west, which are 

the main public vantage points.  However, these views of the building will be within the context of an 
established group of buildings.  The landscaping on, and around the site, will also help to screen the 

impact of this building.   

 

iv. Highway safety 
 

The Highway Authority considers the existing enlarged access onto the C356 to be acceptable, and 
has no objection to the proposal.   

 
v.  Impact upon neighbour amenity 
 

The residential properties on the site are in the applicants ownership and this proposal is relatively 
isolated from any other properties.  The proposal is not considered to have a material adverse effect 

upon the amenity of any residential properties which is considered to comply with Policy SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 
 

 

Page 12



___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

14 February 2017 

 

vi.  Archaeology 
 

The County Principal Archaeologist  has no objection to the application. 

 
vii.  Other matters 
 

Weaverthorpe Parish Council has raised no objection to the proposal.  

 

viii.  Conclusion  
 
In light of the above considerations, the erection of a general purpose agricultural storage building is 

considered to satisfy the relevant policy criteria outlined within Policies SP9, SP13, SP16, SP19 and 
SP20 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. The 

proposal is therefore recommended for approval subject to the following conditions.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 

 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plan(s): 

  

 REVISED SITE LAYOUT PLAN - date stamped 30.01.2017. 
 REVISED PLAN - Drawing No 2016/10/1 date stamped 30.01.2017. 

  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 
Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 
 

 

 
 

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

 

 

Item Number: 7 

Application No: 16/01950/MFUL 

Parish: Upper Helmsley Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Helmsley Horse Racing Limited (Mr David O'Meara) 

Proposal: Erection of an equestrian building to include 40no. stables and indoor 

exercise track 

Location: Common Farm Upper Helmsley Malton YO41 1JX 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  20 March 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  19 January 2017 

Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No objection  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

Land Use Planning No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions following amendment  

 

Neighbour responses: None 

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The application site lies outside of a defined settlement limits of Upper Helmsley, to the west of the 

village. The site contains an existing farm with associated buildings and an existing horse gallop. 

Vehicular access is from the east of the site onto to the Gate Helmsley to Upper Helmsley road. The 

site is also located within the York Green Belt.  

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of an equestrian building to include 40no. stables and indoor exercise track. 

 

The total number of stables at the yard will therefore be 163no. 

 

The building has a total footprint of 1728 square metres, with a width of 54m and a depth of 32m.  It 

will measure 4.75m to the eaves and 9.564m to the ridge. The building will be constructed of painted 

block work, with Yorkshire Boarding above to the eaves. he roof material is likely to be dark grey 

fibre cement or a metal roof with translucent roof lights. The exact materials of the building will be 

agreed as part of discharge of conditions application, should the application be approved.  

 

POLICY: 
 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013)  

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP6 - Delivery and Distribution of Employment Land and Premises 

Policy SP9 - Land Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

Retained Policies of the revoked Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) 

 

Policy Y1 - York sub area policy 

Policy YH9 - Green Belts 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012) 

 

Chapter 3. Supporting a prosperous rural economy  

 

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) (2014)  

  

HISTORY: 

 

The relevant planning history includes: 

 

• 3/141/4/PA - Refused - Outline application for the construction of a detached bungalow and 

garage at Common Farm, Upper Helmsley. 

 

• 3/141/8/PA - Permitted -  Change of use of disused farm buildings to 9 self contained holiday 

cottages at Common Farm, Upper Helmsley. 

 

• 3/141/8A/FA - Permitted - Erection of two storey accommodation block to form six family 

dwellings and a 10 bedroom stablemans dwelling together with parking for 20 cars. 

 

• 16/00238/MFUL - Planning permission granted 11.05.2016 - Erection of replacement horse 

barn, block of 24no. loose boxes, 3no.horse walkers, roofing over of existing horse walker, 

provision of a horse wash down area and a horse warm up area, resurfacing of tracks and yard 

area, provision of an all weather gallop, horse walks, gallops access lay-by, widening of 

access road and siting of temporary office/rest room building (part retrospective application). 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

The main considerations are:  

 

i. The Principle of Development within the York Green Belt 

ii. Character and Form 

iii. Highway safety 

iv. Other matters 

v.  Conclusion  

 

i. The Principle of Development within the York Green Belt 

 

Policy SP1 (General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy) states that proposals for 

development within the Green Belt will be assessed against national policy. The National Planning 

Policy Framework (NPPF) states that the construction of new buildings within the Green Belt should 

be regarded as inappropriate. Exceptions to this are: 

 

• Buildings for agriculture and forestry; 

• Provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation and for cemeteries, as 

long as it preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the purposes of 

including land within it; 

• The extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate 

additions over and above the size of the original building; 

Page 20



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

• The replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not 

materially larger than the one it replaces;  

• Limited infilling in villages, and limited affordable housing for local community needs under 

policies set out in the Local Plan; or 

• Limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites 

(brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), 

which would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose of 

including land within it than the existing development. 

 

Policy SP9 (The Land-Based and Rural Economy) supports Ryedale's land-based economy and a 

working countryside through supporting new buildings if they are necessary to support land-based 

activity, including for equine purposes. In conjunction with Policy SP9, the small scale conversion of 

existing buildings or provision of new buildings to support appropriate rural economic activity is 

supported in the wider open countryside. 

 

The equine use of the site and its relatively isolated location mean that the development is not 

considered to be inappropriate in the Green Belt and it accords with the NPPF and Policy SP1. The 

equine use of the site and the provision of 25 -40 full and part time employees is considered to be in 

accordance with Policies SP6 and SP9 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

ii. Character and Form 
 

Policy SP13 (Landscapes) seek to protect the quality, character and value of Ryedale's diverse 

landscapes by encouraging new development and land management practices which reinforce the 

distinctive elements of landscape character within Ryedale's broad character landscape areas including 

the Vale of York. To accord with Policies SP16 (Design) and SP20 (Generic Development 

Management Issues) and reinforce local distinctiveness, the location, siting, form, layout, scale and 

detailed design of new development should respect the context provided by its surroundings. 

Consideration must also be given to the type, texture and colour of materials, quality and type of 

building techniques and elements of architectural detail. As such, the design of the building. with a 

pitched roof and the use of Yorkshire Boarding is considered to be appropriate for the location. 

 

There will be views of the proposed building from the bend in the road travelling from Upper 

Helmsley and heading towards Sand Hutton. However, the building will be read in conjunction with 

the existing buildings on the site. The building will not be able to be seen from the Upper Helmsley to 

Gate Helmsley Road due to the landform.  Common Farm is sited on lower in ground level compared 

to the Upper Helmsley to Gate Helmsley Road.  

 

The proposal is considered to be appropriate in this rural setting and is considered to comply with the 

criteria set out in Policies SP13, SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

iii. Highway safety 

 

The Local Highway Authority has raised no objection to the proposal. The existing vehicular access 

will be utilised onto to the Gate Helmsley to Upper Helmsley Road.  They have advised that a 

condition is attached to the Decision Notice is planning permission is granted regarding precautions to 

prevent mud, grit and dirt onto the highway, including wheel wash facilities.  

 

iv. Other matters 

 
Gate and Upper Helmsley Parish Council has raised no objection to the proposal. However, they have 

stated the following: 

 

When the gallops were being development, the lorries made such a mess of the roads and verges and 

the Parish Council would wish to get assurances that there will not be a repeat of this.  

 

Page 21



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

The agent has been made aware of this and the condition recommended by the Local Highway 

Authority will prevent such occurrences happening again.  

  

v. Conclusion  

 
In light of the above, the proposal is considered to meet the relevant policy criteria outlined within 

Policies SP1, SP6, SP9, SP13 SP16, SP19 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and 

within the National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore recommended for 

approval, subject to the following conditions. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the commencement of the development 

hereby permitted,  or such longer period as may be agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to be used on the exterior of the 

building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policies SP13, SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit of mud, grit and dirt on 

public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority.  These facilities shall include the provision of wheel washing facilities where 

considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority.  These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction commences on the site, and be kept available 

and in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in 

consultation with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure that no mud or other debris is deposited on the carriageway in the interests of 

highway safety. 

 

4 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 OS Site Location Plan - Drawing Number PD213-09 dated 19/12/2016. 

 As Proposed Site Block Plan - Drawing Number PD213-06 dated 19/12/2016. 

 New Stabling and Covered Warm Up Track as Proposed Elevations - PD213-08 dated 

19/12/2016. 

 New Stabling and Covered Warm Up Track as Proposed Floor Plan - PD213-07 dated 

19/12/2016. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  

 

 

Page 22



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

Item Number: 8 

Application No: 16/01870/FUL 
Parish: Broughton Parish Meeting 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr M Blakeley 
Proposal: Erection of detached two-bedroom dwelling with garden shed and 

formation of vehicular access (revised details to refusal 16/00973/FUL 

dated 13.09.2016) 
Location: Land Adj To Dhekelia  Moor Lane Broughton Malton YO17 6QJ 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  12 January 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  24 January 2017 
Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Land Use Planning No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  
Parish Council No views received to date  

Parish Council No views received to date  

 
Neighbour responses: Ms Bunmi Lana, Miss J Robinson,  

 

 

 

SITE:  
 

The application site is located within the Development Limits of Broughton, a settlement located to 

the west of Malton that is classified as an 'Other Village' within the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 
Strategy. The site is adjacent to Moor Lane and the land was formally  the curtilage of the property to 

the north of the site, 'Dhekelia'.  

 

PROPOSAL: 
 
Erection of detached two-bedroom dwelling with garden shed and formation of vehicular access 

(revised details to refusal 16/00973/FUL dated 13.09.2016). 

 
Members should note that a revised scheme has been submitted, showing an eave height of  2.4m.  

 

The proposed detached two-bedroom dwelling will be single storey, ridge parallel to Moor Lane and 
have a footprint of approximately 79 square metres. It  will measure 4.494m to the ridge and 2.4m to 

the eaves. There is a small rear offshoot with a pitched roof that will form the living/dining room 

space. A small garden shed is proposed in the south east corner of the plot. The vehicular access will 
run to the north of proposed dwelling, with a width of 2.745m. Turning space will be to the front of 

the dwelling, with private garden space to the rear.  

 

HISTORY: 
 

There is extensive planning history regarding the site, including: 
 

• 13/01099/OUT - Planning permission granted 25.07.2014 - Erection of 1 no. dwelling (site 
area 0.0282 ha). 

 

 
 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 8



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

 

• 15/00358/FUL - Planning application withdrawn  due to disparities regarding the site 
measurements - Erection of a 3 bedroom detached dwelling and detached 1 bay garage 

together with formation of vehicular access (revised details to outline approval 
13/01099/OUT dated 25.07.2014). 

 

• 16/00045/FUL - Planning application withdrawn due to Officer concerns regarding the siting 
and scale of the proposed dwelling  in relation to the neighbouring property of Dhekelia. 

Furthermore, insufficient car parking spaces were shown - Erection of 1no. four bedroom 
detached dwelling with garden shed and formation of vehicular access. 

 

• 16/00973/FUL - Planning permission refused 13.09.2016 due to Officer concerns regarding 
insufficient evidence to demonstrate that the proposed residential dwelling would be suitable 

and/or available for Local Needs Occupancy, the siting, scale, form and detailed design of the 
dwellings and the impact upon the neighbouring properties of Dhekelia and Westway.  

 

POLICY: 
 
The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

 
Policy SP1 General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy  

Policy SP2 Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP4 Type and Mix of New Housing 
Policy SP16 Design 

Policy SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP21 Occupancy Restrictions 

Policy SP22 Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy  
 

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)  
 

Chapter 6. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes  

Chapter 7. Requiring good design 
 

National Planning Practice Guidance (2014) 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations to be taken into account when considering the proposal are:  
 

i. The Principle of Development 

ii. Local Needs Occupancy  
iii. Siting, scale, form and detailed design of the proposed dwelling 

iv. Highway safety 

vi. Impact upon neighbouring amenities 
viii. Water supply and waste water 

ix. Land contamination  

x. The Community Infrastructure Levy  
xi.  Other matters 

xii.  Conclusions  
 

i . The Principle  of Development 
 
The proposed dwelling is on a site located within the development limits of Broughton. In principle, 

such infill residential development within the built  up frontage of the village, is supported by Policy 

SP2 of the  Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

Page 35



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

 

ii . Local Needs Occupancy 
 

The proposed dwelling is located in an 'Other Village' as identified in the Local Plan Strategy and if 

approved will be subject to a Local Needs Occupancy condition to satisfy Policies SP2 and SP21. It  is 
proposed that the dwelling will be a single storey bungalow. This type of development would be 

supported by Policy SP4 of the Local Plan Strategy as there is a noticeable short fall of bungalows 

across the Ryedale District.  
 

The applicants at this moment in time, do not meet the Local Needs Occupancy criteria. However, it 
is their intention to move from their current dwelling in Salton to a property within one of the 

qualifying Parishes or adjoining Parishes and live there until they meet the criteria of the Local Needs 

Occupancy. The applicants intends to build the bungalow and leave it water t ight and sealed and 
finishing it  off to completion level nearer the time when they can meet the Local Needs Occupancy. It 

is considered that on the basis of the information provided, the Local Needs Occupancy criteria can be 

met, albeit  not at the present t ime by the applicants, but they will be able to in the future. The 
applicants may also choose to build the property and rent it out to people who do meet the Local 

Needs Occupancy. If this is the case, Policy SP4 states that there is a noticeable short fall of 

bungalows across the Ryedale District and this dwelling would meet this requirement. 
 

iii . The siting, scale , form and detailed design of the proposed dwelling 
 
The proposed detached two-bedroom dwelling will be single storey, run ridge parallel to Moor Lane 

and have a footprint of approximately 79 square metres. It  will measure 4.494m to the ridge and 2.4m 

to the eaves. There is a small rear offshoot with a pitched roof that will form the living/dining room 
space. A small garden shed is proposed in the south east corner of the plot. The vehicular access will 

run to the north of proposed dwelling, with a width of 2.745m. Turning space will be to the front of 

the dwelling, with private garden space to the rear. It is considered that the reduction in eaves height 
has created a steeper roof pitch which is typical of the immediate locality. The dwelling will be 

constructed of brick, with stone quoins and double roman pantile roof. Windows and doors will be 
UPVC with black rainwater goods.  

 

It  is considered the new dwelling by virtue of its sit ing, scale, form and detailed design reinforces 
local distinctiveness of the immediate locality and complies with Policies SP16 and SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 
The property is considered to have sufficient  private amenity space to the rear of the dwelling, 

commensurate to the size of dwelling. 

 

iv. Highway safety 
 

The Highway Authority has stated no objection to the proposal and has advised that conditions should 
be attached to any decision regarding verge crossings, visibility splays, the parking for the dwellings, 

precautions to prevent mud on the highway and onsite parking, storage and construction traffic during 

the development.  
 

v. Impact upon neighbouring amenities 
 

The proposed dwelling will be 1metre from the southern boundary of the neighbouring property 

Westway at the closest point. The northern elevation of the proposed dwelling will be 6m from the 
dwelling of Dhekelia, with a driveway of 2.745 metres in width and a boundary wall between. The 

proposed dwelling is also set back by 5.85metres from Moor Lane. Dhekelia directly abuts Moor 

Lane. It  should be noted that the main aspect for Dhekelia is southwards.  
 

 

 
 

Page 36



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

 

Due to the bungalow only being single storey and the positioning of the proposed openings, there will 
be not be a material adverse impact upon neighbouring amenities in terms of the bungalow being 

overbearing in presence or causing loss of sunlight and daylight. The proposal is considered to 

comply with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. A condition will be attached to 
the Decision Notice to ensure that the window on the north elevation that serves a bathroom is 

permanently obscure glazed.  

 

vii. Water supply and waste  water 
 
As part of the 2013 outline approval, Yorkshire Water has stated that a water supply can be provided 

to the site and with regard to waste water, the information that was provided by the application means 

that no further observations were not required by them.  
 

viii. Land contamination 
 
A land contamination screening assessment has been submitted, along with the Landmark Historic 

Database. This does not identify any use or historic use which may have resulted in potential land 

contamination. Therefore, no further investigation is necessary.  

 

ix. The Community Infrastructure Levy  
 
The application is liable for the Community Infrastructure Levy. The charge has been calculated at 

£6205.  

 

x.  Other matters - Consultation comments  
 

3 White Cottages 
 

A lengthy letter of objection has been received from the occupier of 3 White Cottages, a property 
which is located approximately 33 metres  to the immediate north of the application. The letter can be 

viewed in full on the Council's website. In summary, the objection states: 

 
- The outline planning permission for a bungalow had a foot print of approximately 62.5 square 

metres and this one has increased to 79.58 square metres. This will be overbearing to neighbouring 

properties and detract from the street scene 
- Dhekelia's front windows are south facing and face onto the plot and would face the gable end of the 

new build 

- Many of the bungalows along Main Street are single storey with hipped roofs, with the external wall 
of one of these is 2.44 metres.  This scale and design would be more in keeping with the street scene 

and less obtrusive to neighbouring properties. 

- Disparities regarding the Local Needs Occupancy and the CIL self build exemption  
- Stone quoins are not in keeping with surrounding properties  

- The positioning of the proposed dwelling is too close to the boundary of Westways 

 
Dhekelia 

 
The occupier of Dhekelia has also made representations regarding the application. The full letter can 

be viewed on the Council's website. In summary, the letter states: 

 
- My main concern has always been with the height of the proposed building and the potential loss of 

light 

- The height has been slightly increased  
- There is a plan that was approved in 2013 and the new design could be fitted to the scale and 

footprint of the approved plans 

 
 

Page 37



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

 

Comments regarding the consultation comments 
 

Whilst  it  is noted that bungalows along Main Street have hipped roofs, there are also some with 

gables that run ridge parallel to the road, especially on the eastern side of Main Street. The proposed 
dwelling is single storey, with an eave height of 2.4m. The issues regarding Local Needs Occupancy 

have been explained within section ii of the appraisal and it  can be confirmed that the applicant is not 

applying for the CIL self build exemption. The issues regarding neighbouring amenity have also been 
addressed within section iv of the appraisal. It  is uncertain what height the occupier of Dhekelia is 

referring to that has increased. The previously refused scheme had a ridge height of 5.325 metres and 
an eave height of 2.72 metres, which is higher than that shown the current proposed dwelling.  

 

Members should note that 2013 approval (Planning Reference 13/01099/OUT) only made reference to 
a site layout plan and did not have an approved ground floor layout plan or elevation plan. The layout 

plan as shown as simply 'indicative'. A condition on the 2013 approval states: 

 
The outline permission hereby approved shall be single storey only as indicated on drawing number 

MP/2013/B/2/1A. additional accommodation may be accommodated in the roofspace subject to 

approval of the reserved matters required by condition no.02 above. 
 

Reason:- In the interests of protecting the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers, and to satisfy 

the requirements of Policy SP4 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  
 

xi.  Conclusions  
 
In light of the above considerations, the proposal is considered to satisfy the relevant policy criteria 

outlined within the National Planning Policy Framework. Polices SP1, SP2, SP4, SP16, SP19, SP20, 

SP21and SP22 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy are also satisfied. The proposal is therefore 
recommended for approval subject to the following conditions. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 
  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 
 

2 Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the commencement of the development 

hereby permitted,  or such longer period as may be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to be used on the exterior of the 

building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. 
  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 
  

3 The ground floor window on the northern elevation of the proposed extension shall be 
permanently glazed with frosted or opaque glass.  

  

 Reason:- To protect the privacy of adjoining properties and to comply with Policy SP20 of 
the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 
excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of 

material on the site until the access(es) to the site have been set out and constructed in 

accordance with the published Specification of the Highway Authority and the following 
requirements 

Page 38



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

  

 d. The crossing of the highway verge and/or footway shall be constructed in accordance 
with 

 the approved details and/or Standard Detail number E6. 

  
 h. The final surfacing of any private access within 2 metres of the public highway shall not 

 contain any loose material that is capable of being drawn on to the existing or proposed 

 public highway. 
  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 
ensure a satisfactory means of access to the site from the public highway in the interests of 

vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience. 

 
5 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site (except for the purposes of constructing the initial site access) until splays are provided 

giving clear visibility through to and parallel along the application site fronting Moor Lane 
from a point measured 2.4 metres down the centre line of the access road. The eye height 

will be 1.05 metres and the object height shall be 0.6 metres. Once created, these visibility 

areas shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at 
all t imes. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and in 
the interests of road safety. 

 

6 No dwelling shall be occupied until the related parking facilit ies have been constructed in 
accordance with the approved drawing number MB/2016/B/1A. Once created these parking 

areas shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at 

all t imes. 
  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 
provide for adequate and satisfactory provision of off-street accommodation for vehicles in 

the interest of safety and the general amenity of the development. 

 
7 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit  of mud, grit  and dirt  on 

public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority. These facilit ies shall include the provision of wheel washing facilit ies where 

considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 
Authority. These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction commences on the site and be kept available 

and in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 
ensure that no mud or other debris is deposited on the carriageway in the interests of 

highway safety. 
 

8 Unless approved otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority there shall be no 

establishment of a site compound, site clearance, demolition, excavation or depositing of 
material in connection with the construction on the site until proposals have been submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the provision of: 

  
 a. on-site parking capable of accommodating all staff and sub-contractors vehicles clear of 

the public highway 

  
 

Page 39



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

 

 b. on-site materials storage area capable of accommodating all materials required for the 
operation of the site. The approved areas shall be kept available for their intended use at all 

t imes that construction works are in operation. 

  
 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

provide for appropriate on-site vehicle parking and storage facilit ies, in the interests of 

highway safety and the general amenity of the area. 
 

9 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plan(s): 

  

 Site Location Plan dated 17.11.2016. 
 Revised Plan - Drawing Number MB/2016/B/1A.  

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

 

INFORMATIVES: 
 

1 You are advised that a separate licence will be required from the Highway Authority in 

order to allow any works in the adopted highway to be carried out. The 'Specification for 
Housing and Industrial Estate Roads and Private Street Works' published by North 

Yorkshire County Council, the Highway Authority, is available at the County Council's 

offices. The local office of the Highway Authority will also be pleased to provide the 
detailed constructional specification referred to in this condition. 

 

2 An explanation of the terms used above is available from the Highway Authority. 
 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 
Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

 

 

Item Number: 9 

Application No: 16/01887/73A 

Parish: Settrington Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Non Compliance with Conditions 

Applicant: Mr S Benson 

Proposal: Variation of Condition 21 of approval 12/00809/73A dated 29.11.2012 to 

state that the approved plans shall be "619/21K Site Layout, 619/20D 

House Type Design, 619/22B Window Details Eaves Details and 619/23 

Additional Door Details" 

Location: Land At Corner Of Chapel Road And Forkers Lane Settrington Malton 

North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  25 January 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  5 January 2017 

Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Building Conservation Officer No objection  

Parish Council Object  

 

Neighbour responses: Mr Richard Clark, Mrs Rosemary Mitchell, Keith & Sue 

Herdman, Mr Alan Mitchell,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 
The application site lies at the junction of Chapel Road and Forkers Lane within the Settrington 

Conservation Area and also within the village's Development Limits. The site lies on a corner plot to 

the north of the village on the boundary of the Settrington Conservation Area. Twentieth century 

housing lies to the north and Grade II listed buildings neighbour the site to the west and south.  

 

Land to the east across Forkers Lane falls within the wider Wolds Area of High Landscape Value.  To 

the west of 17 - 19 Chapel Street is a designated VIUA, which follows the path of Settrington Beck 

southwards.  The site falls outside the historic core of Settrington, which lies to the west and south of 

the application site. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Variation of Condition 21 of approval 12/00809/73A dated 29.11.2012 to state that the approved 

plans shall be "619/21K Site Layout, 619/20D House Type Design, 619/22B Window Details Eaves 

Details and 619/23 Additional Door Details" 
 

Members should note that the principle of residential development on the site has already been 

established as part of the  09/01372/FUL planning permission and other more recent planning 

permissions. This application will therefore appraise the changes from planning permission reference 

12/00809/73A to this application. Members should note that the proposal is still for 2.no two bedroom 

semi-detached dwellings. 

 

The main timber frame structure has already been constructed at the site. It was brought to the 

attention of the Local Planning Authority that there was a breach of planning control in terms of the 

height and positioning of the proposed dwellings, which differed from the approved drawings as part 

of the 12/00809/73A planning application.  

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

The applicant was therefore advised to cease work and submit an application to seek to vary the 

approved plans condition of the original approval 12/00809/73A.  

 

The agent has submitted a letter explaining why the breaches of planning control have occurred. The 

full letter is attached to this report, but in summary the height of the dwellings has increased due 

disparities in the ground and finished floor levels. The positioning of the dwellings is also different to 

that approved due to the rear boundary disparities and the squaring of the plot for a timber frame like 

construction. Furthermore, the agent has stated that the dwelling would have had to be sited at least 1 

metre off the rear boundary due to the inclusion of windows in the rear elevation to allow for fire 

escape purposes.  

 

The dwellings as approved under application 12/00809/73A had a ridge height of 7m based upon a 

ground floor finishing level of 37.31 AOD (above ordnance datum). The dwellings as now drawn and 

as constructed with the timber frame structure have a ridge height of 7.1m based upon a ground floor 

finished level of 37.71 AOD. The levels disparities has resulted in a 0.4m increase in height and the 

timber frame construction has resulted in a 0.1m increase in height, totally an overall 0.5 increase in 

height.  

 

The dwellings as drawn as part of this application and as constructed with the timber frame structure 

are positioned 1.3m further south (forward) than approved.  

 

Members should note that an additional street scene plan has been received showing the proposal in 

context of the Grade II listed buildings to the immediate west of the site and also showing how the 

dwellings are viewed from Forkers Lane. This plan is appended to the agenda.  

 

Members should note that the application has been brought before them as the application has 

received a variety of consultation comments., including some objections.  

 

Settrington Parish Council have objection to the proposal and 2 objections have been received from 

the occupiers of Brook Farm Barn, which is located approximately 290m to the south west of the 

application site along the Back Lane.  

 

A letter of support has also been received from the occupier of  Willowbeck Lodge, which is located 

immediately to the north west of the application site. Comments have also been received from Mr 

Richard Clark who was the applicant for a previous scheme that was refused. These comments will be 

elaborated upon within the appraisal section of the report.  

 

LEGILSATION AND PLANNING POLICY: 

 

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act 1990 

 

In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a listed building 

or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State shall have 

special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, or its setting or any features of special 

architectural or historic interest which is possess.  

 

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

 

In the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area, of any [functions 

under or by virtue of] any of the provisions mentioned in subsection (2), special attention shall be 

paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area. 

 

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

 
Policy SP12 Heritage 

Policy SP13 Landscapes 

Policy SP16 Design 

Page 48



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

Policy SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  

Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)  

 

Chapter 7. Requiring good design 

Chapter 12. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment  

 

National Planning Practice Guidance (2014) 

 
 

HISTORY: 

 

The site has an extensive planning history, including: 

 

• 08/00417/FUL - Planning application withdrawn - Erection of a four bedroom dwelling with 

detached double garage and formation of vehicular access. 

 

• 09/01372/FUL - Planning permission granted 16.03.2010- Erection of 2 no. two bedroom 

semi-detached dwellings with associated parking/ amenity areas. 

 

• 12/00809/73A - Planning permission granted 29.11.2012- Variation of Condition 21 of 

approval 09/01372/FUL dated 17.03.2010 to state "The development hereby permitted shall 

be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans: 858-GA10-01-A Site Layout 

Plan, 858/105A Proposed elevations, 858/106 Floor Plans proposed" 

 

• 15/00738/73A - Planning permission refused 28.08.2015- Variation of Condition 21 of 

approval 12/00809/73A dated 29.11.2012 to state "The development hereby permitted shall 

be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans: 1411/14 - Location plan 

1:1250, 1411/15 - Site Plan as Existing, 1411/16 - Site Plan as Proposed, 1411/17 - Ground 

Floor Plans as Proposed, 1411/18A - First Floor Plans as Proposed, 1411/19 - Elevations as 

Proposed 1, 1411/20A - Elevations as Proposed 2, 1411/21A - Aerial View" 

 

This application was refused due to the siting, scale and detailed design of the proposed dwellings. 

The dwellings were positioned 5m further forward then the neighbouring listed buildings and 

proposed  2 storey cross wing gables to incorporate a third bedroom in each of the dwellings.  

 

Members should note that all of the pre commencement conditions of 12/00809/73A have been 

agreed as part of the discharge of conditions application 15/01130/COND. 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

The main considerations to be taken into account are:  

 

i. Impact upon the character of Settrington Conservation Area and impact upon the setting of 

 the neighbouring Grade II Listed Buildings 

ii. Impact upon neighbouring amenity  

iii.. Other matters - Consultation responses 

iv.  Conclusions  

 

i. Impact upon the character of Settrington Conservation Area and impact upon the 

 setting of the neighbouring Grade II  Listed Buildings 

 
 

 

 

Page 49



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

The Building Conservation Officer has stated the following with regard to the proposal: 

 

No Objection 

 

This application lies at the junction of Chapel Road and Forkers Lane within the Settrington 

Conservation Area. The site lies on a corner plot to the north of the village on the boundary of the 

conservation area. Twentieth century housing lies to the north, and Grade II listed buildings 

neighbour to the west and south. As set out in my consultation response of 4th July 2008, a strong 

aspect of part of the existing character of Settrington is the position on the plot of the buildings. 'They 

have a strong relationship to the streets and the beck either running parallel to the road with their 

roof ridges and long elevations running in tandem or they are gable end on. Either way, the 

relationship is a strong one of either parallel or perpendicular placing on their plots.' 

 

The site is prominent being a corner plot. It is however, predominantly viewed at close distance only. 

Due to the topography, high hedges and street layout, the predominant experience of the site is at 

close quarters. When travelling from west-east, Chapel Road rises up to the bend.   

 

The above application seeks a 'Variation of Condition 21 of approval 12/00809/73A dated 29.11.2012 

to state that the approved plans shall be 619/21K site layout 619/20D House Type Design 619/22B 

Window Details Eaves Details and 619/23 Additional Door details' 

 

It is apparent from the submitted documents that the height of the building varies c. 500mm higher 

than the '12/00809/73A' approved application. c. 400mm of this can be accounted by a ground level 

difference and c. 100mm of this can be accounted for a construction detailing, resulting in a space 

between the first floor window lintels and the eaves.  The position of the building on the plot is c. 1.3m 

further south of the approved scheme.  

 

In my opinion the ridge height difference is regrettable but is however, relatively minor. The effect of 

the height difference is mitigated by the way the surroundings are experienced as Chapel Lane rises 

in height as it travels west-east. This natural topographic experience of the surrounding rising land 

mitigates the ridge increase of c. 300mm.  The spacing distance of c. 12m between the neighbouring 

listed buildings to the west also mitigates the difference in ridge height as do the trees in between. 

 

Careful consideration was given to the approved design in respect of the detailing. This included first 

floor windows set directly below eaves level. This application for consideration, seeks to vary that 

design detail and  sets the eaves level. c 100mm above the window lintels. In my opinion this 

alteration is regrettable ,but is also relatively minor.  The fact that the building is set back c. 25m 

from the footpath also helps to mitigate this effect.  

 

In my opinion the alteration that has greatest impact is moving the building forward by c. 1.3m. The 

impact of this is most apparent when viewed travelling from west to east along Chapel Road. Due to 

screening and topography however, the most significant view of the impact is restricted to the 

immediate locality looking east from the western end of the listed buildings. Due to the rise in the 

land, set back position of the buildings, separation distance between the existing buildings and new 

buildings and the tree screening, the impact of the set forward is mitigated.    The overall effect of the 

building and its relationship with its neighbour still retains the characteristic eaves and ridge parallel 

to the road and its predominantly set back from the roadside position being c. 25m away from the 

road.    

 

In my opinion the alterations set out above do cause some harm to the character of the conservation 

area. In my opinion however the degree of harm is very much on the minor  end of the scale and is so 

slight, as to cause  very much less than less than substantial harm. The c.12m separation with the 

neighbouring building, localised topography, and the way views of the buildings are taken in, help to 

mitigate the very minor harmful effects. 

 

 

 

Page 50



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

ii. Impact upon neighbouring amenity  

 

The dwellings as now drawn as part of this application and as constructed with the timber frame 

structure are positioned 1.3m further forward then previously approved. Whilst the height of the 

dwellings has increased, it is considered that due to the separation distance of the proposed dwellings 

to Fair View to the immediate north and 18 Chapel Road to the immediate west of the application site, 

there will not be a material adverse impact upon neighbouring occupiers. This is in terms of being 

overbearing in presence, causing loss of light or loss of privacy, complying with Policy SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. No comments have been received from the occupiers of either of 

these properties.  

 

iii. Other matters - Consultation responses 

 
Settrington Parish Council  

 
Settrington Parish Council object to the proposal. Their full letter of objection is appended to the 

agenda. Members should also note that the Parish Council did not objection to the 12/00809/73A 

application. A summary of the current objection is as follows: 

 

- The approved buildings matched the height of the adjacent Grade II listed cottages on Chapel Road.  

- The application has a detrimental impact on the character of the Settrington Conservation Area as   

   the building have been brought forward of the building line by over 1.3m.  

- The coming forward of 1.3m fails to respect the building lines of the adjacent listed buildings. 

- The variation drawings do not show the adjacent buildings which are critical 

- The chimney should be constructed in materials suitable for the Conservation Area.  

 

Occupiers of Brook Farm Barn, Settrington 

 

Two objections have been received from the occupiers of Brook Farm Barn which is located 

approximately 290m to the south west of the application site along the Back Lane. Their full letters of  

can be viewed on the Council's website. A summary of their letters are as follows: 

 

- This application is some 1.3m forward of that building line and the building itself is about 400mm 

higher that the adjacent cottages. The building is partially constructed and the timber frame has been 

erected. It is described locally as 'sticking out like a sore thumb'.  

- The application clearly does not maintain the building lines or ridge height. It is forward and higher 

than the adjacent terrace , giving the proposed building a greater prominence in comparison to the 

listed buildings, which is inappropriate and is not merited . Door details and window heights at eaves 

have been revised.  

- Reducing this ground level by some 400mm is not technically difficult and is quite a common 

building process.  Undermining of foundations of the adjacent, stone shed could be avoided either by 

some local underpinning (refer Party Wall Act) or by using an rc raft foundation.  

- I see no technical reason why the building line has been brought forward.  

- To approve this scheme would undermine the planning process, the value of Conservation Area 

status and the rigorous conditions applied.  

 

Occupiers of Willowbeck Lodge 

 

A letter of support has been received from the occupier of  Willowbeck Lodge, which is located to the 

north west of the application site. The full letter can be viewed on the Council's website. A summary 

of the letter is as follows: 

 

- If the proposed variations are not passed then the properties being built would have to be taken down 

and moved nearer the fence on the northern boundary which adjoins our property. 

- If the proposed variations are not passed then the moving of the properties nearer the fence would 

have an adverse impact on the owners of Fairview which is a bungalow and would be even more 

overlooked and dominated by the new properties. 

Page 51



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

 

Richard Clark 

 

A letter has been received from Richard Clark who was the applicant for a previous scheme that was 

refused (Reference 15/00738/73A). The letter makes reference to the comments made by Settrington 

Parish Council. The full letter can be viewed on the Council's website. A summary of the letter is as 

follows: 

 

- The brief for 15/00738/73A scheme was to bring the building forward by 2m from the rear boundary 

as the proposed plans were unworkable and should never have been approved 

- Mr Skinner from the Parish Council states that the application we submitted was refused for the 

same reason as the present. This is not at all the case as the only difference to our final plans which 

differed from the original application was that we wanted to bring the new cottages 2m forward from 

the rear boundary.  

- Builders did not proceed with the scheme due to planning conditions. Does this mean that is was 

never intended that the site be developed and unrealistic conditions were imposed to prevent this? 

- Why was the objection from Keith and Sue Herdman not taken on board at the original planning 

stage? 

 

Comments regarding the consultation comments 

 

The issues raised regarding the height and positioning of the dwellings in terms of their impact upon 

the Settrington Conservation Area and the Grade II listed buildings has been carefully considered and 

articulated by the Building Conservation Officer within section i of the appraisal. This is also the case 

regarding the window details at eaves level. It should be noted that the chimney details, showing brick 

and not stone slips have been agreed as part of the discharge of conditions application.  

 

The occupiers of Willowbeck are correct in stating that if the proposed variations are not passed then 

the properties would be moved nearer to the rear fence. Members should note that planning 

permission has previously been granted for the dwellings to be positioned in close proximity to the 

rear fence. Members should also note that application 15/00738/73A was refused due to the siting, 

scale and detailed design of the proposed dwellings. The dwellings proposed in that application were 

positioned 5m further forward then the neighbouring listed buildings and also proposed  2 storey cross 

wing gables which were a significant change in terms of their design in order to accommodate a third 

bedroom in both units. 

 

It should also be noted that the conditions attached the 12/00809/73A approval were imposed by the 

Local Planning Authority due to the specific issues regarding the site. Planning conditions can only be 

imposed where they are necessary, relevant to planning and to the development to be permitted, 

enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects in accordance within Paragraph 206 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. It is considered that all conditions attached to the 

12/00809/73A approval complied with these requirements. The objection from Mr and Mrs Hardman 

of Willowbeck was considered as part of the determination of the application 09/01372/FUL that was 

approved by Members of the Planning Committee on 16th March 2010. Their comments were also 

taken into consideration as part of the later 12/00809/73A approval.  

 

iv.  Conclusion  
 

The application site is prominent being a corner plot within the Settrington Conservation Area and 

neighbouring Grade II listed buildings. It is however, predominantly viewed at close distance only. 

Due to the topography, high hedges and street layout, the predominant experience of the site is at 

close quarters. When travelling from west-east, Chapel Road rises up to the bend and close views of 

the site and there proposed dwellings can only be seen after crossing the beck.  

 

 

 

Page 52



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 February 2017 

It is therefore considered that on balance, the increase in height of 0.5m and the positioning of the 

dwelling  further south on the plot by 1.3m, that the scheme as submitted is acceptable and satisfies 

the policy requirements of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy 

Framework. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval, subject to the following conditions.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted and 

agreed details as part of the discharge of conditions application 15/01130/COND regarding 

conditions 02, 03, 04, 05, 06, 09, 10, 11, 13, 15, 16 and 19. 

  

 Reason: To comply with Policies SP12,  SP16, SP19 & SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy. 

  

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Site Location Plan - date stamped 30.11.2016. 

 Site Layouts - 619/21K dated 30.11.2016. 

 House Type Design - 619/20D dated 30.11.2016. 

 Window Details Eaves Detail - 619/22B dated 30.11.2016. 

 External Door Details - 619/23 dated 30.11.2016. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 February 2017 

Item Number: 10 

Application No: 16/01839/MFUL 
Parish: Nawton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Miss Jenny Bulmer 
Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to allow siting of 28no. holiday lodges in 

association with Canadian Fields campsite together with formation of site 

roads, car parking and turning areas and associated landscaping 
Location: Canadian Fields Gale Lane Nawton Helmsley YO62 7SD 

 
Registration Date: 15 November 2016 8/13 Week  Expiry Date: 14 February 2017 

Case Officer: Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 

 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 
Parish Council Support application 

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions 

Lead Local Flood Authority No objection 
Environmental Health Officer Informative required 

Land Use Planning Comments made 

Neighbouring Parish Council No views received to date 
Caravan (Housing) No objection - informative to be added 

 

Neighbour responses: Mrs Ailsa Teasdale, 

 
Overall Expiry Date: 9 February 2017 

 

 

 

SITE:  
 
The site is located approximately 1km south of the Service Village of Nawton within the open 

countryside.  It  is also in an area that is designated as an Area of High Landscape Value. The site 

operates as 'Canadian Fields' following the grant of planning permission for change of use of 
agricultural land to a campsite providing 'glamping' style accommodation for 19 no. safari type tents in 

2011 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Change of use of agricultural land to allow siting of 28no. holiday lodges in association with Canadian 
Fields campsite together with formation of site roads, car parking and turning areas and associated 

landscaping. 

 

HISTORY: 
 
The site has an extensive planning history, including: 

 

• 11/00686/MFUL - Planning permission granted 28.09.2011-  Change of use of agricultural 
 land to allow the siting of 19 no. tents on decking bases, erection of toilet and reception block 

 and canteen marquee, change of use of agricultural building to winter tent store, formation of 

 vehicular access, gravel site roads and paths, car parking and landscaping. 
 

• 13/01122/73AM - Planning permission granted 16.12.2013 - Removal of Condition 06 of 

 approval 11/01280/73AM dated 09.03.2012 to allow a year round opening season for the 
 holiday occupation of the tents. 

Page 66

Agenda Item 10



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 February 2017 

 

• 14/00779/FUL - Planning permission granted 11.09.2014 - Change of use of reception, toilet, 
 office and laundry store building to reception, toilet, office, laundry store and first  floor 

 wardens accommodation for use solely in connection with the operation of Canadian Fields 

 campsite (retrospective application). 
 

POLICY : 
 

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

 
Policy SP1 General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy  

Policy SP8 Tourism 

Policy SP13 Landscapes 
Policy SP14 Biodiversity  

Policy SP16 Design 

Policy SP17 Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 
Policy SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  

Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 
Policy SP21 Occupancy Restrictions 

 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012)  

 

Chapter 3. Supporting a prosperous rural economy  
Chapter 7. Requiring good design 

Chapter 11. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment  

 
National Planning Practice Guidance (2014) 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations to be taken into account when considering the proposal are:  
 

i.  The Principle of Development  

ii. The impact of the proposal upon the character and appearance of the landscape - the 
 Fringe of the Moors Area of High Landscape Value 

iii. Highway safety 

iv.  Flood risk and drainage 
v. Impact upon neighbouring amenity 

vi.  Other matters 

vii.  Conclusion 
 

i .  The Principle  of Development  
 

The National Planning Policy Framework supports local planning policies that support sustainable rural 

tourism and leisure developments that benefit  the businesses in rural areas, communities and visitors 
and which respect the character of the countryside. This should include supporting the provision and 

expansion of tourist  and visitor facilit ies in appropriate locations where identified needs are not met be 

existing facilit ies in rural service centres. 
 

Policy SP8 (Tourism) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy states that tourism will be supported  

through the provision of a range and choice of quality tourist  accommodation. In the wider open 
countryside, new static caravan and chalet self catering accommodation and extensions to existing 

facilit ies that can be accommodated without an unacceptable visual intrusion and impact on the 

character of the locality will be supported. All year round tourism is supported subject to the occupancy 
conditions set out within Policy SP21 (Occupancy Restrictions). 

Page 67



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 February 2017 

 

The proposed development will provide for the expansion of an existing tourism site which currently 
comprises of 4no. 'glamping' style' safari tents, with planning permission already having been granted 

for a further 15no. safari tents on the site immediately to the east of this site.  

 
The Local Planning Authority has a requirement to ensure any new development is sustainable. The 

scale of the proposed tourist  site in total would be relatively large. However, the site is located to the 
south of a Service Village, Nawton Beadlam that is regarded as a sustainable settlement.  There are 

facilit ies relatively nearby, such as a bus link along the A170 to the Market Towns of Helmsley, 

Kirkbymoorside and Pickering. The site is also well located for accessing the North Yorkshire Moors.  
 

The principle of the proposed development is therefore considered to be acceptable in this location.  

 

ii . The impact of the proposal upon the character and appearance of the landscape - the 

 Fringe of the Moors Area of High Landscape Value 
 
Policy SP13 (Landscapes) states that development proposals should contribute to the protection and 

enhancement of distinctive elements of landscape character that are the result of historical and cultural 

influences, natural features and aesthetic qualities. 
 

The topography of the site is generally flat, following through from the adjacent glamping site.  The site 
benefits from mature boundary plating of native species to all of the external boundaries. Therefore, the 

proposed  28no. holiday lodges are generally well screened by established planting. Additional tree and 

shrub planting will be added throughout the site to integrate the lodges into this rural setting. There will 
be grassland between the lodges, with mown amenity areas to allow children's play. Car parking will be 

in groups to serve a cluster of the lodges. The surfacing of these will be crushed stone as continuation of 

the existing roads.  
 

The proposed lodges will have a width of 12.3 metres, a depth of 6.112 metres and a floor area of 75 

square metres. Each lodge will have 3 bedrooms, with capacity to sleep up to 6 people.  
 

Due to the relatively flat nature of the site, there will only be glimpsed views of the proposal. There will 
be views from slightly higher ground to the north. However, it  is considered that due to the proposed 

lodges being of pitched roof design, with timber style cladding, the proposal is not considered to have a 

material additional adverse effect upon the Fringe of the Moors Area of High Landscape Value. A 
condition will be imposed to the Decision Notice if planning permission is granted regarding the 

external appearance of the proposed lodges.   

 

iii . Highway safety 
 

Access to the site is via the existing vehicular access off Gale Lane. The Local Highway Authority had 
originally objected to the original scheme, stating the following: 

 
The proposed development would more than double the permitted accommodation at this site. You are 

aware that previous concerns were raised by the highway authority over the intensification of use that 

the then change of use application originally submitted would likely have on the public highway. 
 

The proposed lodges would attract additional traffic to and from the site, and also a desire to visit local 

amenities in Beadlam/Nawton villages identified as 1km away. Gale Lane, along which such access 
would generally be gained, is of limited width (typically between 4.0 and 4.6 metres wide) along its 

length beyond the built-up area and already suffers from over-run and damage to adjacent verges due 

to vehicles trying to pass other traffic. Whilst some lengths of the lane benefit from wide, flat verges, in 
other places the verges are narrow, and being eroded still further. 

 

 
 

Page 68



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 February 2017 

 

Manual for Streets suggests a minimum carriageway width of 4.8 metres to enable a car to pass a larger 
vehicle within an urban environment. In rural areas, where speeds can be higher and road alignments 

varied, a width of 5.5 metres is considered more appropriate for the same purpose. 

 
Given that there should be a strong thread towards encouraging travel modes other than the private 

car, such limitations of verge width and damage may actually discourage pedestrian trips by visitors to 
and from the site and the villages, and therefore possibly further increase vehicle trips which in turn 

leads to more instances of vehicles trying to pass each other along the route and cause yet more edge 

and verge damage and adding to an on-going maintenance obligation on the highway authority. 
 

It is recommended that the application be refused for the following reason: 

 
The Planning Authority considers that the roads leading to the site are by reason of their poor 

alignments/ poor junctions / insufficient widths / poor condition / unsuitable gradients and lack of 

footways/lighting/turning area considered unsuitable for the traffic which would be likely to be 
generated by this proposal. 

 

Since receiving this advice, it  is understood that discussions have taken place between the applicant and 
a representative of the Local Highway Authority regarding the upgrading of Gale Lane to the north of 

the site through the formation of 2no. placing places.  
 

These passing places will be positioned on the eastern side of Gale Lane.   

 
Following the submission of an additional plan showing these 2no. passing places, the Local Highway 

Authority has raised no objection to the proposal and have stated the following: 

 
The proposal now includes 2 no. passing places along a section of Gale Lane towards Nawton village 

which will also afford some refuge for pedestrians, given the narrow and uneven verge in the vicinity. 

 
Consequently the Local Highway Authority recommends that the following Conditions are attached to 

any permission granted: 
 

These conditions relating to the works to the passing places, the parking places on the site to retain 

available and precautions to prevent mud on the highway.  
 

iv.  Flood risk and Drainage 
 
The Sustainable Urban Drainage System and Development Control Officer from NYCC has confirmed 

that as the change of use proposals involve using existing drainage and as stated in the Flood Risk 

Assessment (FRA) that no impermeable surfaces are proposed, they have no objection to the proposal.  
 

Yorkshire Water have advised that a condition is attached to the decision notice if planning permission 
is granted regarding no piped discharge of surface water from the application site shall take place until 

works to provide a satisfactory outfall, other than the local public sewerage for surface water have been 

completed in accordance with details submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. They 
have also stated that the FRA is satisfactory. In terms of water supply, Yorkshire Water have stated that 

it  is the applicant 's responsibility to ensure that an adequate supply of water can be made available.  

 

v. Impact upon neighbouring amenity 
 

The site is located to the south west of Wrens Caravan Park. The application is an expansion to an 
existing tourist  accommodation site that is closer to Wrens Caravan Park. The property of Kensa Park is 

located approximately 100 metres to the south of the site.  

 
 

Page 69



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 February 2017 

 

It is considered that this expansion of the existing tourist  accommodation, there will not have a material 
adverse impact upon neighbouring occupiers. This is in terms of the proposal being overbearing in 

presence, causing loss of light or loss of privacy, causing noise, odour or light flicker, complying with 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. There has been no response from any 
neighbouring occupiers to the current application. 

 

vi.  Other matters 
 

The Environmental Health Officer has advised that an informative is attached to the decision notice if 
planning permission is granted indicating that the applicant needs to contact the Housing Services 

Department for a variation to their site license. 

 
Nawton Parish Council supports the application as they consider it  would bring some local employment 

and because tourism is a significant industry, it  would be beneficial to other businesses.  

 
A letter of support has been received from the occupiers of High Farm, Pockley stating that the proposal 

which will not be prominent in the landscape and will help to support a valuable local amenity both in 

terms of the facility it  provides and also employment that it  brings to the area.  
 

vii.  Conclusion 
 

In light of the above considerations, the erection of a general purpose agricultural storage building is 

considered to satisfy the relevant policy criteria outlined within Policies SP1, SP8 SP13, SP16, SP17, 
SP18, SP19, SP20 and SP21 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy 

Framework. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval subject to the following conditions.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 
  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 

 

2 Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the commencement of the development hereby 
permitted,  or such longer period as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 

Authority, details and samples of the materials to be used on the exterior of the building the 

subject of this permission shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 
Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no piped discharge of 
surface water from the application site shall take place until works to provide a satisfactory 

outfall, other than the local public sewerage for surface water have been completed in 

accordance with details submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
  

 Reason: To ensure that the site is properly drained and in order to prevent overloading and 

surface water not being discharged to the foul sewer network. 

Page 70



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 February 2017 

 

4 Prior to the commencement of the development  hereby permitted, details of proposed 
planting shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The 

submitted scheme shall consist of locally native species only specified in a planting schedule 

providing details of species, planting sizes and numbers of each species. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented within the first available planting season (Nov - March) 

following completion of the development. In the event of any plant material dying , or become 

seriously diseased or damaged within a 5 year period following  planting, it  shall be replaced 
with similar species to a specification that shall be first  agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority unless the Local Planning authority give written consent to any variation. 
  

 Reason: To ensure that the development is properly integrated into its rural in accordance with 

Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 
 

5 The accommodation hereby permitted shall be occupied for holiday purposes only; and not as 

a person's sole or main place of residence. 
  

 Reason: It  is not considered that the application site is suitable for permanent residential use 

because it  is located in open countryside, in an area where permanent residential development 
is only permitted in exceptional circumstances and the application has only been considered in 

relation to holiday use, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP20 and SP21 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 
 

6 The accommodation hereby permitted shall be available for commercial let  for at least 140 

days a year and no let must exceed a total of 31 days in any one calendar year.  
  

 Reason: It  is not considered that the application site is suitable for permanent residential use 

because it  is located in open countryside, in an area where permanent residential development 
is only permitted in exceptional circumstances and the application has only been considered in 

relation to holiday use, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP20 and SP21 of the 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

7 The owners/operators of the accommodation hereby permitted shall maintain an up-to-date 
register of lettings/occupation and advertising will be maintained at all t imes and shall be 

made available for inspection to an officer of the Local Planning Authority on request. The 

register shall include full details of the following:  
  

 o the main address(es) of all the occupiers of the accommodation hereby permitted 

 o the start date of every one of the letting/occupation of all the occupiers of the 
accommodation hereby permitted 

 o supporting evidence of the main address(es) of all the occupiers of the accommodation 

hereby permitted 
  

 Reason: It  is not considered that the application site is suitable for permanent residential use 

because it  is located in open countryside, in an area where permanent residential development 
is only permitted in exceptional circumstances and the application has only been considered in 

relation to holiday use, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP20 and SP21 of the 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

8 The permission hereby granted shall only authorise the use of this site for the stationing of a 
maximum of 28 holiday lodges, in the position shown on the Proposed Site Plan C date 

stamped 15.11.2016 and within the submitted red line as shown on the Site Location Plan date 

stamped 15.11.2016. 
  

 Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and flood risk, and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policies SP13 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

Page 71



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 February 2017 

 

9 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 
excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of material 

on the site in connection with the construction of the access road or building(s) or other works 

until: 
  

 (i) The details of the following off site required highway improvement works, works listed 

below have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
 consultation with the Local Highway Authority: 

  
 a. Provision of 2 no. vehicular passing places along Gale Lane, at locations and dimensions as 

generally indicated on Drawing Number 03 and in accordance with the specification of the 

 highway authority as shown on Drawing Number dev 4959/2/spec. 
  

 (iii) A programme for the completion of the proposed works has been submitted to and 

approved writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Local Highway 
Authority. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 
ensure that the details are satisfactory in the interests of the safety and convenience of 

highway users. 

 
10 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with 

the Highway Authority, the development shall not be brought into use until the following 

highway works have been constructed in accordance with the details approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority under condition number (9) above: 

  

 Provision of passing places as described in the condition. 
  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and in the 
interests of the safety and convenience of highway users. 

 

11 Notwithstanding the provision of any Town and Country Planning General Permitted or 
Special Development Order for the time being in force, the areas shown on Drawing Number 

02C for parking spaces, turning areas and access shall be kept available for their intended 

purposes at all t imes. 
  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure these areas are kept available for their intended use in the interests of highway safety 
and the general amenity of the development. 

 

12 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 
site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit  of mud, grit  and dirt  on 

public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 
Authority. These facilit ies shall include the provision of wheel washing facilit ies where 

considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 
Authority. These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction commences on the site and be kept available and 

in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in consultation 
with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 
ensure that no mud or other debris is deposited on the carriageway in the interests of highway 

safety. 

 

Page 72



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 February 2017 

 

13 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plan(s): 

  

 Site Location Plan date stamped 15.11.2016. 
 Proposed Site Plan C date stamped 15.11.2016 

 Proposed Plans - Pinelog Woodsman Cottage dated 15.11.2016. 

 Additional Plan - Proposed Passing Places on Gale Lane - Drawing 03 dated 25.01.2017. 
  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

 

INFORMATIVES: 
 
1 The applicant should contact the Housing Services Department at the Council for a variation 

to their site license. 
 

2 You are advised that a separate licence will be required from the Highway Authority in order 

to allow any works in the adopted highway to be carried out. The 'Specification for Housing 
and Industrial Estate Roads and Private Street Works' published by North Yorkshire County 

Council, the Highway Authority, is available at the County Council's offices. The local office 

of the Highway Authority will also be pleased to provide the detailed constructional 
specification referred to in this condition. 

 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 
Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 February 2017 

Item Number: 11 

Application No: 14/00949/FUL 
Parish: Nawton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Miss Jennifer Bulmer 
Proposal: Erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp kitchen to serve camp cafe 

(retrospective application). 

Location: Canadian Fields  Gale Lane Nawton York YO62 7SD 
 

Registration Date: 12 September 2014 8/13 Week  Expiry Date: 7 November 2014 

Case Officer:  Ext:  
 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No views received to date 
Highways North Yorkshire No objection 

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date 

Neighbouring Parish Council No views received to date 
 

Neighbour responses: Mr Geoff Thurman,Mr Keith Pickering,Mrs Margaret 

Clancy,T ina Dougherty,Mrs Jacky Pickering,Mrs Marie 
Wilson,Mr Andrew And Mrs Fiona Farnell,Carol 

Farnell,Jacqui Cussins,Mrs Carol Thurman,Sarah 

Hayman,Amancay Argerich,Helen Otterburn,Miss Sarah 
Morris,Pat Spink,Mrs Sarah Kenderdine,Mrs Liz Turnbull,P. 

Thompson,Dianne Archibald,Maureen And Keith 

Ingleby,Mrs L Glover,Mr J Thompson,Mrs Mandy 
Hudson,Joshua Wood,Stephen Dodsworth,Clare 

Symonds,Robert Toone,John Wood,Mr B Hall,Mr Jonathan 
Pickard,Mr Paul Tate-Smith,Brenda And Bryan Wilson,Cate 

Tate-Smith,Alexandra Tate-Smith,E A Brown,Christine 

Pinder,C Sleightholme,Mr C J Braithwaite,Hayley Dargan,N 
L Heighton,Mr S E Phillips,Miss Katie Hayman,Mr Dan 

Thurman,Katie Turner,Miss Louise Smith,Mrs Sarah 

Coxon,Helen Sykes,Mrs Sheila Caine,Mr And Mrs 
Holmes,Mr Ian Oliver,D And J Coney,Mrs Ann 

Thompson,Mrs Emily Slingsby,Mrs Susan Masterman,Mrs 

Jo Riley,Mrs EEaine Bramley,Mr Steven Ruscoe,Mrs Laura 
Palmer,Mr And Mrs Peter And Sarah Stark,Susie Mann,Miss 

Jo Ward,Pat Durrant,Emma Dodsworth,Cara Richardson,Mr 

James And Mrs Louise Gurling,Mr Bruce And Mrs Vanessa 
Allen,Mr Andy Prout,Mrs Angela Blizzard,Mrs Caroline 

Baum,Mrs Anita Cooper,Mr mike Smithson,Chris 

Winsor,Mr Simon Baum,Ruth Gordon,Mrs Emma 
Brackley,Mr David Hunt,Mrs Maggie Barraclough,Mr 

Antony Neal Cooper,Mrs Debbie Swift,Mr David 
Metcalfe,Mr David Taylor,Mrs Maria Taylor,Mr And Mrs IE 

Teasdale,Mr George Innes,Mrs Trudi Woodhead,Mrs Carol 

Welch, 

 
Overall Expiry Date: 4 December 2014 

 
2 

Page 94

Agenda Item 11



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 February 2017 

 

Introduction 
 

Members will recall that the matter of the formal decisions to take enforcement action in relation to the 

cessation of the restaurant use (A3 Use Class) and the removal of the prefabricated kitchen from the 
land at Canadian Fields, Gale Lane Nawton was authorised on 18th November 2014 with a two year 

period for compliance.  The time period was  a relatively long period and was agreed in order that the 

site operator would be able to expand the 'glamping' side of the business in the intervening period. 
 

Members also resolved at the same meeting to grant a temporary two year planning permission for the 
retention of the prefabricated kitchen building (a retrospective application) to tie in with the compliance 

period of the enforcement action that had been authorised at the same committee meeting. 

 
Although draft versions of both notices were produced for issue it  has come to light that neither the 

temporary planning permission or the  enforcement notice were formally served.  Both matters remain 

unresolved and given the passage of time Members are advised that both matters should  be reviewed in 
the light of any change of planning circumstances. Copies of the earlier planning and enforcement 

reports to the 18th November 2014 meeting are attached to this report for ease of reference together 

with a location plan and block plan showing the restaurant building. 
 

Further information and Assessment 
 
At the point in time that both planning application Ref. 14/00949/FUL and the Enforcement Report 

were considered the developer had not proposed any local improvements to Gale Lane. 

 
Members will of course be aware that two passing spaces have been proposed in connection with 

Application Ref. 16/01839/MFUL  (see earlier on these agenda papers).The formal views of NYCC 

Highways have therefore been sought in relation to planning application 14/00949/FUL and the 
associated enforcement that had been previously authorised In particular NYCC have been requested to 

advise  officers whether or not the  localised highway improvements to be provided are sufficient  to 
mitigate their previous concerns in relation to highway safety issues associated with the A3 use of the 

restaurant.  Members will be updated on the Late Pages or at the meeting. 

 
Members will also note from the earlier reports to the 18th November 2014 meeting that officers had 

also raised concerns in respect of both planning policy matters and amenity impacts grounds and 

notwithstanding the final views of NYCC Highways on highway safety matters these other concerns 
remain outstanding. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   To be reported 
 

Final recommendation to follow in relation to the views of NYCC Highways in respect of Highway 

safety matters 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 95



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

Report of the Development Manager 

 

Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton 

 

 

 

Purpose of the Report 

 

To advise Members of an alleged breach of planning control and recommend an appropriate 

course of action. 

 

 

1.       INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1     Members will recall that this matter was originally presented on the agenda for the 

Planning Committee meeting dated 23 September 2014. At that time, the item was 

deferred as planning application ref. 14/00949/FUL had been recently validated.  

 

1.2     The public consultation period for the submitted planning application has expired 

therefore the matter is re-presented to Members for consideration. This report should be 

read in conjunction with the Planning Officer report for this planning application. 

Members will note that 88 letters of support and 7 letters of objection have been received 

to the application.  

 

2.  SITE LOCATION 

 

2.1 As identified by the Ryedale Local Plan, the site is located approximately 1km to the 

south of Nawton village within the open countryside and the Edge of the Moors Area of 

High Landscape Value.  

 

2.2 Planning permission was granted for change of use of agricultural land to form a campsite 

providing 'glamping' style accommodation for no. 19 safari type tents in 2011 

(11/00686/MFUL).  The permission also included the formation of a vehicular access, 

provision of a store for the tents and the erection of a toilet, reception block and a 

‘canteen’ marquee.  

 

3.  ALLEGED BREACH OF PLANNING CONTROL 

 

3.1 Change of use of campsite (Sui Generis Use) to a mixed use comprising a campsite (Sui 

Generis Use) and restaurant (A3 Use Class) named ‘Gi Sukawaka Restaurant'. Details of 

the restaurant, including an advertisement in the ‘Yorkshire Advertiser’ and an example 

menu can be found in the Appendix of this report. In addition, Members are directed to 

the website for the campsite (http://canadianfields.co.uk/).  

 

3.2 An additional ‘kitchen unit’ has been located on the site to provide for the restaurant 

which is considered as part of planning application ref. 14/00949/FUL.  

 

 

 

Page 96



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 

4.  WHEN ALLEGED BREACH FIRST OCCURRED 

 

4.1 The Local Planning Authority was first made aware of the ‘Gi Sukawaka’ Restaurant on 

the 2 June 2014.  

 

5.  HISTORY AND EVIDENCE OF BREACH 

 

5.1 On the 3 June 2014, a letter was sent to the site owner identifying the breach of planning 

control. A response was received on the 11 June 2014, which identified that a Planning 

Consultant had been instructed to submit a retrospective planning application. 

 

5.2 On the 4 July 2014, further correspondence was sent to the property owner as no planning 

application had been submitted. On the 17 July 2014, Planning Application ref. 

14/00777/FUL was validated. The application sought planning permission for: 

 

Change of use from canteen tent ancillary to the campsite for customers staying on the 

campsite to canteen tent not ancillary to the campsite that is open to customers both from 

the campsite and customers not staying on the campsite (retrospective application). 

 

A copy of the public consultation responses received to this application can be found in 

the Appendix of this report.  

  

5.3 On the 19 August 2014, planning application reference 14/00777/FUL was withdrawn. 

The Planning Consultant advised the Council that he had taken legal advice and he 

considered that the development did not require planning permission. A copy of the 

withdrawal letter received from the Planning Consultant can be found in the Appendix of 

this report.  

 

6.   REQUIRES PLANNING PERMISSION? 

  

6.1 The canteen marquee, named the ‘Gi Sukawaka’ Restaurant, currently provides a range of 

different meals, drinks and events to both residents of the campsite and customers located 

from outside of the site. The view of Officers and the Council’s Solicitor is that the 

current operation of the ‘ancillary canteen marquee’ is that of a restaurant use  falling 

within Class A3. 

 

6.2 In considering the need for planning permission, and determining if a material change of 

use has occurred, it is important to refer to planning application reference 

11/00686/MFUL. Planning permission, was granted pursuant to this application for: 

 

“Change of use of agricultural land to allow the siting of 19 no. tents on decking bases, 

erection of toilet and reception block and canteen marquee, change of use of agricultural 

building to winter tent store, formation of vehicular access, gravel site roads and paths, 

car parking and landscaping.” 

 

6.3 Members will note that as part planning application 11/00686/MFUL, a ‘canteen 

marquee’ was granted permission. The use classes order identifies that a canteen which is 

not ancillary to another use, is an A3 Use Class. Therefore, in determining the need for 

planning permission for the restaurant, the question is whether the permitted use of the 

canteen marquee is ancillary to the campsite use.   

 

Page 97



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

6.4 To demonstrate this, reference is made to the application form for planning application 

11/00686/MFUL (see Appendix). Section 18 of the form identifies that the applicant did 

not apply for any distinct or separate A3 use within the site. It is clear, therefore, that 

canteen marquee was intended to be ancillary to the wider campsite use only.  By virtue 

of the provisions of the use classes order, the permitted use of the canteen marquee is 

therefore sui generis, and a material change of use of the campsite (sui generis use) to a 

mixed use comprising a campsite (sui generis use) and a restaurant (use class A3) has 

therefore occurred.  

 

6.5 At this point reference is also made to planning application 14/00949/FUL. As part of the 

public consultation process of the application a significant number of responses have been 

received. In total 88 letters of support have been received, however Members will note 

that only 2 of those letters were from residents who identified they live outside of Ryedale 

or the surrounding area. This is significant as it identifies that the vast majority of people 

who have written in support of the development live in the surrounding area therefore are 

more likely to use be using the facility as a restaurant rather than the permitted campsite 

use. The following examples of the comments received from local residents identify the 

use of the restaurant: 

 

“We have visited the restaurant over 20 times during the summer” 

“Friends and family visit the restaurant on a regular basis” 

“My daughter organised a surprise party for me at Canadian Fields which was 

wonderful and nearly 50 of our friends and family joined us in an amazing three course 

meal” 

“We held my daughters christening here” 

“We visit the restaurant on weekly basis” 

“I booked the whole venue for my retirement party” 

 

6.6 With regards to the events held on the site, such as weddings and race days, Members are 

advised that these do require planning permission as Class B, Part 4 of the GDPO 1995 

does not provide permitted development and temporary uses if the land in question is a 

building, or is within the curtilage of a building.  

 

7.  PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT  

 

7.1  The relevant planning policy considerations are:  

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 

  Paragraph 14   –  Achieving Sustainable Development 

Section 2  –  Ensuring the vitality of town centres 

  Section 3  –  Supporting a prosperous rural economy 

  Section 11   –  Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy  

 

  Policy SP7   – Town Centres and Retailing 

  Policy SP8   –  Tourism 

  Policy SP13   –  Landscapes 

Page 98



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

  Policy SP16   –  Design 

  Policy SP19   –  Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

  Policy SP20   –  Generic Development Management Issues 

 

8.       APPRAISAL 

 

8.1   The issues surrounding the breach of planning control are: 

 

  i) The Principle of the Development 

8.2 As identified in the Ryedale Local Plan, the application site is situated within the open 

countryside and outside any of the Town Centre Commercial Limits of the District. To 

ensure the continued vitality and viability of Ryedale’s Market Towns or Service 

Villages, the introduction of town centre uses outside of town centre locations is 

discouraged in both National and Local Planning Policy. 

 

8.3 In terms of National Planning Policy, Section 2 (Ensuring the vitality of town centres) of 

the NPPF is relevant. Paragraph 24 seeks to protect the viability and vitality of town 

centres through the sequential test process. It states that ‘Local Planning Authorities 

should apply a sequential test to planning applications for main town centre uses that are 

not in an existing centre and are not in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan. They 

should require applications for main town centre uses to be located in town centres, then 

in edge of centre locations and only if suitable sites are not available should out centre 

sites be considered...’ 

 

8.4 The aims of the NPPF are reflected in the requirements of Policy SP7 of the Ryedale Plan 

- Local Plan Strategy which seeks to ensure that the town centres will be the focus for a 

diverse range of uses in the District. 

 

8.5 In this case, the site owner has not provided a sequential test for the restaurant and as a 

result is has not been demonstrated that the development would not harm the vitality or 

viability of Ryedale’s town or village centres. Paragraph 27 of the NPPF states ‘Where an 

application fails to satisfy the sequential test or is likely to have significant adverse 

impact on one or more of the above factors, it should be refused.’ In light of this, it is 

officers view that the development has failed to meet the requirements of NPPF and 

Policy SP7 the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

8.6  Members will note a letter of objection has been received to planning application 

14/00949/FUL from a local business owner in Nawton. He identifies that since the 

opening of Canadian Fields his level of trade has fallen to such an extent that is 

detrimental to his business. Whilst direct competition is not in itself a material planning 

consideration, the aim of planning policy is to protect businesses which are located within 

more sustainable settlements and locations. 

 

ii) Sustainability 

8.7 A fundamental objective of current planning policy is the issue of sustainability. 

Paragraph 14 of the NPPF and Policy SP19 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy, seek to 

ensure a ‘Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development’. In this case, the 

introduction of an A3 restaurant use which is clearly in the open countryside would 

potentially detract and draw trade from the District’s town / service village centres.  It can 

also only be realistically accessed through private transport and it is considered to 

constitute an unsustainable form of development contrary to the requirements of the 

NPPF and Policy SP19 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

Page 99



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

8.8 Paragraph 28 of the NPPF does provide support for the sustainable growth and expansion 

of all types of business and enterprise in rural areas; and support for sustainable rural 

tourism that benefit businesses in rural areas. In this case, the proposal is not considered 

to be a sustainable form of development and the development is considered to be contrary 

to the provisions of Paragraph 28 of the NPPF. 

 

  iii) Other Concerns  

8.9 Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy seeks to protect Ryedale’s landscapes. In 

considering landscape character Policy SP13 states that ‘Development proposals should 

contribute to the protection and enhancement of distinctive elements of landscape 

character that are the result of historical and cultural influences, natural features and 

aesthetic qualities including the ambience of the area, including nocturnal character, 

level and type activity and tranquillity, sense of enclosure / exposure.’  

 

8.10 With regard to residential amenity Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy is 

relevant. This states ‘New development will not have a material adverse impact on the 

amenity of present or future occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and 

buildings or the wider community by virtue of its design, use, location and proximity to 

neighbouring land uses. Impacts on amenity can include, for example, noise, dust, odour, 

light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be an overbearing presence.’  In this 

case Members will note that this site is located adjacent to ‘Wrens Caravan Park’.  The 

impact of the development on the neighbouring caravan park, its visitors, and the adjacent 

residential property also needs to be considered.   
 

8.11 A key concern relating to both the landscape character and residential amenity is that of 

noise. By virtue of its construction the restaurant / canteen marquee provides little 

protection to the surrounding environment.  When in use, or when events are held, this 

activity results in a level of noise being omitted.  This will have a greater impact on the 

surrounding environment, and nearby residents, compared to a building of more 

permanent construction for example. It is clear from the objections received to planning 

application (14/00949/FUL) that the issue of noise is of great concern to nearby residents 

and visitors to the adjacent caravan park. It is also the view of officers that the levels of 

activity associated with the use, the comings and goings of customers to the restaurant, 

result in harm to the nocturnal character of this quiet country road and the overall 

tranquillity of this part of the Area of High Landscape Value. The development is 

therefore contrary to the requirements of Policy SP13 and SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan 

Strategy.  

 

8.12 In terms of highway safety, NYCC Highway Authority have verbally raised concerns 

with regards to the restaurant use on the site. In particular concerns are raised to the lack 

of on site parking available to serve the restaurant, and that the public highway would 

require improvements (passing spaces) to accommodate the additional traffic. The written 

comments of the Highway Authority are awaited and will be reported in the Committee 

late pages or at the Planning Committee Meeting.  

 

8.13 Members will note that the Local Planning Authority has also received concerns that a 

Class A5 takeaway use is operating from the site. The full extent of this service has not 

been determined, however the use of the site for these purposes is likely to generate even 

higher and more frequent levels of activity that would impact further on the character of 

the surrounding area and the amenity of nearby residents.  

 

 

 

Page 100



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

9.  WHY IS IT CONSIDERED EXPEDIENT TO SERVE A NOTICE? 

 

9.1  The harm created by this development, and the reasons why it is considered expedient to 

serve an enforcement notice are outline below: 

 

1. The principle of siting the restaurant use in an open countryside location is 

unsustainable and therefore contrary to the requirements of the Paragraph 14 and 28 

of the NPPF and Policy SP19 Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

2. The site owner has not provided a sequential test argument or any persuasive 

evidence for the A3 restaurant use to be located on the site outside of a town centre. 

As a result, it has not been demonstrated that the development would not be 

materially harmful to the vitality or viability of Ryedale’s town centres or Service 

Villages, in particular Nawton Beadlem. The development is therefore contrary to the 

requirements of Section 2 of the NPPF and Policy SP7 of the Ryedale Local Plan 

Strategy.  

 

3. The restaurant use and associate events and activities result in harm to the overall 

ambience of the area impacting upon the nocturnal character and tranquillity of the 

open countryside. As a result, the landscape character of the surrounding area, and 

the amenity levels of nearby residential properties are materially harmed. As such, 

this proposal would be contrary to the requirements of Policy SP13 and Policy SP20 

of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

4. As a result of insufficient on-site car parking facilities and the impact on the     

unclassified road known as Gale Lane without necessary highway improvements, the 

restaurant use would result in conditions that are detrimental to highway safety 

contrary to the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

10.  STEPS NECESSARY TO REMEDY THE BREACH 

 

10.1 This report seeks authorisation to serve a formal enforcement notice for the cessation of 

the use of the canteen marquee as a restaurant and return it to that of campsite (sui 

generis) use. In order to ensure the use is ceased the following steps shall take place: 

 

1.  Discontinue the use of the land for any purpose related to the A3 and A5 use of the 

canteen marquee including temporary uses, including events such as weddings and 

race days.  

 

2.  Remove any operational development associated to the A3 use, including the kitchen 

unit, from the land.   

 

11.  RECOMMENDATION 

 

11.1 In light of the above report, officers recommend that an enforcement notice is served to 

meet the steps identified in section 10 above 

 

11.2 Members will note that because the restaurant use has been implement without receiving 

planning permission or the submission of a retrospective planning application, the level of 

control the Local Planning Authority can have on the development is limited. An  

enforcement notice should not provide for later approval of details.   

  

Page 101



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 Therefore it is important for Members to note that significant concerns are raised by 

officers that the necessary requirements in terms of highway safety could not be provided 

by virtue of an enforcement notice. 

 

11.3 However, if Members were minded to allow the continued operation of the restaurant use, 

it is recommended that the following restrictions are applied to any enforcement notice 

that is issued: 

 

• The A3 restaurant use / canteen marquee shall not operate for any use outside the 

hours of: 

 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Mondays – Thursdays.  

• 07:00 – 23:00  Fridays - Saturdays 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Sundays and Bank Holidays 

 

• No person who is not a customer of the permitted campsite use (except for 

employees) shall be permitted to be on the premises outside the following times: 

 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Mondays – Thursdays.  

• 07:00 – 23:00  Fridays - Saturdays 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Sundays and Bank Holidays 

 

• No music of any kind  shall be played on the premises outside the following  hours: 

 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Mondays – Thursdays.  

• 07:00 – 23:00  Fridays - Saturdays 

• 07:00 – 22:00  Sundays and Bank Holidays 

 

• No A5 take-away use shall operate from the premises.  

 

12.  SUGGESTED PERIOD FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE NOTICE 

 

12.1  The suggested period for compliance is two months.   

 

 

 

Recommendation 

 

The Council Solicitor be authorised in consultation with the Head of Planning and Housing 

Services to issue an enforcement notice pursuant to section 172 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended) requiring the cessation of the restaurant use (A3 use class) and 

the removal of the pre-fabricated kitchen building from the land.  

 

 

 

Page 102



____________________________________________________________________ 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 November 2014 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE 

 

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING 

 

 

 

Item Number: 9 

Application No: 14/00949/FUL 

Parish: Nawton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Miss Jennifer Bulmer 

Proposal: Erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp kitchen to serve camp 

cafe (retrospective application). 

Location: Canadian Fields  Gale Lane Nawton York YO62 7SD 

 

 

Registration Date:        12 September 2014  

8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  7 November 2014  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 October 2014 

Case Officer:  Matthew Mortonson Ext: 332 

 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

Neighbouring Parish Council No views received to date  

 

Neighbour responses:       Mr Geoff Thurman, Mr Keith Pickering, Mrs Margaret 

Clancy, Tina Dougherty, Mrs Jacky Pickering, Mrs Marie 

Wilson, Mr Andrew And Mrs Fiona Farnell, Carol Farnell, 

Jacqui Cussins, Mrs Carol Thurman, Sarah Hayman, 

Amancay Argerich, Helen Otterburn, Miss Sarah Morris, Pat 

Spink, Mrs Sarah Kenderdine, Mrs Liz Turnbull, P. 

Thompson, Dianne Archibald, Maureen And Keith Ingleby, 

Mrs L Glover, Mr J Thompson, Mrs Mandy Hudson, Joshua 

Wood, Stephen Dodsworth, Clare Symonds, Robert Toone, 

John Wood, Mr B Hall, Mr Jonathan Pickard, Mr Paul Tate-

Smith, Brenda And Bryan Wilson, Cate Tate-Smith, 

Alexandra Tate-Smith, E A Brown, Christine Pinder, C 

Sleightholme, Mr C J Braithwaite, Hayley Dargan, N L 

Heighton, Mr S E Phillips, Miss Katie Hayman, Mr Dan 

Thurman, Katie Turner, Miss Louise Smith, Mrs Sarah 

Coxon, Mrs Sheila Caine, Mr And Mrs Holmes, Mr Ian 

Oliver, D And J Coney, Mrs Ann Thompson, Mrs Emily 

Slingsby, Mrs Susan Masterman, Mrs Jo Riley, Mrs EEaine 

Bramley, Mr Steven Ruscoe, Mrs Laura Palmer, Mr And Mrs 

Peter And Sarah Stark, Susie Mann, Miss Jo Ward, Pat 

Durrant, Emma Dodsworth, Cara Richardson, Mr James And 

Mrs Louise Gurling, Mr Bruce And Mrs Vanessa Allen, Mr 

Andy Prout, Mrs Angela Blizzard, Mrs Caroline Baum, Mrs 

Page 103



____________________________________________________________________ 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 November 2014 

Anita Cooper, Mr mike Smithson, Chris Winsor, Mr Simon 

Baum, Ruth Gordon, Mrs Emma Brackley, Mr David Hunt, 

Mrs Maggie Barraclough, Mr Antony Neal Cooper, Mrs 

Debbie Swift, Mr David Metcalfe, Mr David Taylor, Mrs 

Maria Taylor, Mr And Mrs IE Teasdale, Mr George Innes, 

Mrs Trudi Woodhead,  

 

 

SITE: 
 

As identified by the Ryedale Local Plan, the application site is located approximately 1km south of 

Nawton village within the open countryside and the Edge of the Moors Area of High Landscape 

Value.  

 

The site operates as 'Canadian Fields' after planning permission was granted for change of use of 

agricultural land to a campsite providing 'glamping' style accommodation for no. 19 safari type tents 

in 2011. 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

The proposal seeks erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp kitchen to serve camp café 

(retrospective application).  

 

The supporting statement to the application states “The kitchen is essential to the operation of the 

canteen tent or café in order to meet food hygiene regulations. The appearance of the pre-fabricated 

building is in keeping with the adjacent reception and toilet block and is clad in the same western red 

cedar boards.” 

 

Members will also note that there is an enforcement report on the Planning Committee Agenda 

relating to this site. 

 

HISTORY: 

 

11/00686/MFUL  Change of use of agricultural land to allow the siting of 19 no. tents on 

decking bases, erection of toilet and reception block and canteen marquee, 

change of use of agricultural building to winter tent store, formation of 

vehicular access, gravel site roads and paths, car parking and landscaping - 

Planning permission granted 
 

11/01280/73AM  Variation of condition 11 of approval 11/00686/MFUL dated 28.09.2011 to 

state "The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the approved plans J14 04, J14 06, J14 08 and J14 07A" - J14 07A 

supersedes the originally approved plan J14 07 - Planning permission 

granted 

 
13/01122/73AM Removal of Condition 06 of approval 11/01280/73AM dated 09.03.2012 to 

allow a year round opening season for the holiday occupation of the tents - 

Planning permission granted 
 

14/00777/FUL  Change of use from canteen tent ancillary to the campsite for customers 

staying on the campsite to canteen tent not ancillary to the campsite that is 

open to customers both from the campsite and customers not staying on the 

campsite (retrospective application) - Application withdrawn 

 

 

Page 104



____________________________________________________________________ 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 November 2014 

 

 

14/00779/FUL  Change of use of reception, toilet, office and laundry store building to 

reception, toilet, office, laundry store and first floor wardens accommodation 

for use solely in connection with the operation of Canadian Fields campsite 

(retrospective application) - Planning permission granted 

 

POLICY: 
 

National Policy Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  

National Planning Practise Guidance (NPPG) 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP9 - The Land-Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

Background Information 

This proposal is presented to the Planning Committee because of the number of public consultations 

received to the application. In total 88 letters of support and 7 letters of objection have been received. 

A significant number of these letters seek to support or object to the restaurant located on the site. 

However, Members will note that the proposal is not for the retention of the restaurant use.  The 

application seeks planning permission for the erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp 

kitchen to serve the camp café. 

 

The view of officers is that the site accommodates an A3 restaurant use which does not have planning 

permission, and that this proposal is required to support that use. The planning consultant acting on 

behalf of the applicant disputes the A3 use and suggests that any restaurant is operating ancillary to 

the wider campsite use of the site.  

 

At this point, Members are referred to the public consultation responses received to the application. 

Whilst 88 letters of support have been received, only 2 of these are from residents who live outside of 

the district or the surrounding area. This demonstrates that the vast majority of  visitors / customers to 

the site do so mainly for the restaurant facility. Many of these customers visit the site on a regular 

basis, and have held events at the site such as surprise birthday parties and retirement parties. The 

scale and nature of the use of the restaurant could not be considered ancillary to the permitted 

campsite use.  

 

Development Appraisal 

In terms of the principle of this proposal, Policy SP1 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy is relevant. 

This requires development in the open countryside to be restricted to that which is necessary to 

support a vibrant, and healthy rural economy and communities.  

 

Policy SP8 (Tourism) of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy does seek to support tourism in the District. 

In this case however, as the restaurant use is unauthorised, it is the view of officers that the proposed 

building is not necessary for the purposes of the permitted use of the site. The proposal is therefore 

considered to be an unjustified form of development located within the open countryside therefore is 

contrary to the requirements of Policy SP1.  

Page 105



____________________________________________________________________ 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

18 November 2014 

 

As earlier identified within the report, the application site is located within the Edge of the Moors 

Area of High Landscape Value. This is a locally valued landscape for its natural beauty and scenic 

qualities. Further to representing an unjustified intrusion into the open countryside, the proposed 

building is not considered to be of suitable design or construction for this landscape.  In light of this, 

the application is considered contrary to the requirements of Policy SP13, SP16, and SP20 of the 

Ryedale Local Plan Strategy.  

 

In terms of highway safety, on the basis that the proposals are considered ancillary to the use of the 

site, no objections have been received from the highway authority. NYCC Highway Authority have 

verbally raised concerns with regards to the restaurant use on the site. In particular concerns are raised 

to the lack of on site parking available to serve the restaurant, and that the public highway would 

require improvements (passing spaces) to accommodate the additional traffic. The written comments 

of the Highway Authority are awaited, however, and will be reported in the Committee late pages or 

during the Planning Committee Meeting.  

 

The application is therefore recommended for refusal.  

 

Members will note that the above recommendation is made on the basis that the restaurant use on the 

site remains unauthorised. This development would be necessary for the continued operation of the 

restaurant. Therefore, if Members consider that it is not expedient to seek enforcement action on the 

restaurant and thereby in affect granting planning permission for the A3 use, the justification for the 

proposal will have been provided.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refusal  

 

1 It has not been demonstrated that the proposal in this open countryside location is necessary 

to support a sustainable, vibrant and healthy rural economy and/or community. The proposal 

is therefore contrary to the requirements of Policy SP1 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 

Strategy. 

 

2 The proposed building by virtue of its detailed design and method of construction is not 

considered to be appropriate in this open countryside location, and within the surrounding 

area which is designated as an Area of High Landscape Value. In addition, there has been no 

benefits demonstrated that would outweigh this harm. The proposal is therefore contrary to 

the requirements of Policies SP13, SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 

Strategy. 

 

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



P
age 107



P
age 108



 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 18 November 2014 

 
 

 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillor Mrs Burr declared 
a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest. 
 

122 Enforcement Report - 14/00007/UD - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton 
 

Decision 
 

(i) That the Council Solicitor be authorised in consultation with the Head of 
Planning and Housing Services to issue an enforcement notice pursuant to 
section 172 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) requiring 
the cessation of the restaurant use (A3 use class) and the removal of the pre-
fabricated kitchen building from the land; and 
(ii) That the compliance period be two years.  
 
[For 6    Against 4   Abstain 0] 
 

 
 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Hope, Mrs 
Sanderson, Richardson and Windress declared a personal non pecuniary but 
not prejudicial interest. 
 

123 14/00949/FUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton 
 

Decision 
 

PERMISSION GRANTED – Temporary period of 2 years. 
 
[8 For    Against 0   Abstain 2] 
 

 
In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Hope, Mrs 
Sanderson, Mrs Frank, Mrs Burr, Richardson, Maud and Windress declared a 
personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial  interest. 
 

124 14/00947/MFUL - ATS Euromaster, 25-27 Commercial Street, Norton 
 

Decision 
 

DEFERRED FOR SITE INSPECTION 2.12.14 
 
[For 6   Against 0   Abstain 3] 
 

 
 

Page 109



AW/Dec11/ST10542 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
REPORT TO:   PLANNING COMMITTEE  

 

DATE:    14 FEBRUARY 2017 
 

REPORT OF THE:  COUNCIL SOLICITOR 

    ANTHONY WINSHIP 
 

APPLICATION NO: 16/01931/CLEUD 

 
APPLICANT’S NAM E: JOHN GOODRICK EQUESTRIAN DEV ELOPMENTS 

LIMITED 
 

TITLE OF REPORT: CERTIFICATE OF LAWFULNESS IN RESPECT OF WHEY 

CARR FARM,  MAIN STREET, SAND HUTTON, YORK, 
YO41 1LB 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 To consider an application for a Certif icate of Lawfulness for an existing use or 

development. 

 
2.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

2.1 Section 191 of the Tow n & Country Planning Act 1990 provides for anyone to apply 
to the Local Planning Authority for a Lawful Development Certif icate (LDC).  A 

Certif icate is a statutory document certifying in the case of an application under 

Section 191, the lawfulness of existing operations on, or use of land which in this 
case is stated to be in breach of a condition. 

 

 Development or other activity on land is lawful for planning purposes if  it is w ithin one 
of a number of categories including:-  

 

 “the time for taking enforcement action has expired” 
 

2.2 In this application for a Lawful Development Certif icate, the applicants have provided 
the follow ing description of the existing use on  the land show n edged black on the 

attached plan  for a period of more than ten years prior to 1 December 2016. 

 
  "Use of former farm outbuildings and associated yard for the storage and 

 assembly of sectional timber buildings and components which has been 

 operating continuously in breach of condition 10 of planning permission Ref: 
 3/111/19C/FA"   

Page 110

Agenda Item 12



AW/Dec11/ST10542 

 

 If  the applicant proves that there has been a breach of the planning condit ion for a 
period of ten years the Certif icate should be granted.  This is purely a question of fact 

having regard to the available evidence and the planning merits of the use are 

irrelevant. 
 

3.0 THE APPLICATION SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS 

 
 The application site is located to the north of Main Street (C176), Sand Hutton. 

 
 The application site is located w ithin the Sand Hutton Conservation area and is 

adjacent to St Mary's Church and the remains of St Leonard's Church to the rear 

boundary of the site. 
 

 The applicants business operates from w hat has been called a redundant farm yard 

and farm outbuildings of Whey Carr Farm, Sand Hutton. 
 

 The planning unit also includes Whey Carr Farm and an adjacent bungalow .  The 

application site is located w ithin the Sand Hutton Conservation Area. 
 

 

4.0 TIME LIMITATION PERIODS FOR TAKING ENFORCEM ENT ACTION 
 

4.1 The time limits for taking enforcement action in respect of a breach of planning 

control are:- 
 

(i) For operational development the period of four years from the operations 

were substantially completed; and 
 

(ii) For change of use, the period of ten years from the date of breach; 
 

(iii)  In the case of any other breach of planning control, the period of ten years 

beginning w ith the date of breach.  This is the relevant time period for a 
breach of conditon. 

 

5.0 PLANNING HISTORY 
 

5.1 The relevant planning history for the application site can be summarised as follow s:- 

 
The planning unit also includes Whey Carr Farm and an adjacent bungalow .  The application 

site is located w ithin the Sand Hutton Conservation Area. 

 
 Planning permission (LPA Ref 3/111/19C/FA) w as granted on 16 March 1993 for :- 

 

   "Change of use of farm outbuildings and yard for the storage and assembly of 
  sectional timber buildings  and components" 

 
 Condition 06 of that planning permission provides that:- 

 

   "The property known as Whey Carr Farm and the adjacent bungalow shall 
  remain within the same planning unit as the use hereby approved." 

 

  The reason given for that condition w as as follows:- 
 

   "The dwellings and the land and buildings, the subject of this permission, are 

Page 111



AW/Dec11/ST10542 

  closely linked and are served by the same access.  It is considered that if the 

  bungalow or house were sold or let separately from the business, noise and 
  associated activity may result in an unacceptable level of residential amenity 

  and give rise to complaint" 

 
  

 

6.0 THE ISSUE 
 

6.1 Evidence has been submitted alleging that the application site has been used in 
breach of conditions10  for more than ten years prior to 1 December 2016. 

 

6.2 The planning condition that is the subject of this application is condition 10 w hich 
provides as follow s:- 

 

  "Noise from operations conducted on the premises shall not exceed 45 dBA 
 15 minutes Leq as measured at the boundaries of the application site. 

  (Reason: To ensure that noise from the premises does not adversely affect 

 neighbouring residents)" 
 

6.3 The grounds under w hich the certif icate is sought are that the use in breach of 

planning control began more than ten years before the date of this application. 
 

7.0 THE EVIDENCE 

 
7.1 The onus of proof in an application for a Lawful Development Certif icate is f irmly on 

the applicant.  The standard of proof defines the degree of persuasiveness w hich the 

evidence in support of an application must attain before a Certif icate can be granted.  
The relevant standard of proof in this application is “the balance of probability”.  This 

simply means that the applicant must prove that their  case is more likely than not to 
be true. 

 

7.2 The evidence in support of the application may be summarised as follows:- 
 

� Three statutory declarations made formally before a solicitor  and under the 

Statutory Declarations Act 1835 from: 
 

(i)   John Law son Goodrick of Whey Carr Farm. (a Director for the 

 applicant); 
(ii)   Andrew Binnington w ho has worked at the application site since 2002 

 (14 years); 

(iii)    Paula Sedman w ho has worked at the application site since March 
 2003 (13 years); 

 

Statutory Declaration of Mr John Lawson Goodrick  
 

The statutory declaration of Mr John Law son Goodrick states that the applicant 
instructed an acoustic consultant YES consulting (Environmental Consultancy 

provided by City of York Council), to review  the noise posit ion of the company's 

operations in the context of condition 10 and the consultants have provided a noise 
survey.  

 

The noise survey has monitored seven pieces of equipment used in the operation of 
the assembly of sectional timber buildings. 

 

Page 112



AW/Dec11/ST10542 

All seven pieces of equipment are located in the w orkshop on the application site. 

 
The table setting out the recorded noise levels of the seven pieces of equipment for 

approximately a four day period from 20 September 2016 is below : 

 
Each piece of equipment w as monitored at the boundary for a f ive minute period; the 

level recorded are given in the table below . 

 

Equipment 5 minute Leq at the site boundary 
 

Single ended tenoning machine 51.4 dB 

 

Main cross cut machine 52.4 dB 

 

4-sided planning machine 57.7 dB 

 

Surface planer 57.4 dB 

 

Dimension bench 55.2 dB 
 

Small morticing machine 43.8 dB 

 

Main morticing machine 42.1 dB 

 

 

 
Mr John Goodrick has also submitted confidential f inancial information w hich 

demonstrates that the level of sales of f ield shelters, stables and other timber items  

assembled on the application site by the use of machinery for cutting and working 
timber has been signif icant and stable for the ten year period prior to 1 December  

2016. 

 
Statutory declaration of Mr Andrew  Binnington. 

 

The evidence of Mr Binnington may be summar ised as follow s:- 
 

  (i) He has  worked at  the application  site continuously for the last 14 

   years.  His hours of w ork are 8am-5pm Monday to Sunday although 
   work often f inishes at 3.30pm on a Fr iday.  There has been no w ork at 

   weekends  or Bank Holidays. 
 

  (ii) His w ork involves the manufacture of sections timber framed stables, 

   f ield shelters, stable doors, stable w indows and roof trusses. 
  

  (iii)  Work   practices   have   not   changed for the last 14 years  using  

   principally the same machinery.  
 

  (iv) Work also includes loading and unloading. 

 
Statutory declaration of Paula Sedman. 

 

The evidence of Ms Paula Sedman may be summar ised as follow s:- 
 

  (i) She  has w orked continuously at the application site for the last 13 

Page 113



AW/Dec11/ST10542 

   years during the hours of 9am-4pm three days a w eek.  

 
  (ii) Her role includes clerical and accounts w ork co-ordinating the delivery 

   of manufactured stables, f ield shelters etc. 

 
  (iii)  Ms Sedman has confirmed that the level of business actively during 

   the 13 years has been consistent. 

 
In this case the evidence submitted on behalf of the applicants has been challenged 

by Mr Adam Griggs and Mrs Karen Griggs.  They are neighbours living near the 
application site and are able to give eye witness evidence for a small part of  the ten 

year period.  Mr & Mrs Gr iggs have lived in neighbouring property since August 2013. 

 
The key points made may be summarised as follow :- 

 

  (a) Accounts of the applicants f iled at Companies House show  capital 
   expenditure  of more  than £100,000  since 2006.  This suggests a 

   signif icant increase in activity at the site over the ten year period. 

 
  (b) It  is stated that the value of the company's sales over the ten year 

   period has not been included in the application; 

 
  (c) Mr Adam Griggs makes the follow ing statement:-  

 

  The YES Consultancy report states that : 
 

  "there  were  141 15 minute  Leq periods  monitored  during the sites (sic) 

  working hours, of these 74% of them exceeded the 45dB LAeq (15 minute)"  
 

  Response 
 
  This equates to noise exceeding the prescribed limits for 26 hours per week 

  (141 x 15 minutes x 74%).  this in turn indicates the cutting operations are not 
  condensed   into a single  period  to   last  as short  a time as  possible, or 

  alternatively, that the nature of the business has in fact changed considerably 

  from a mere assembly operation to  significantly increased levels of cutting 
  and raw material processing over the years." 

 

ID Planning, the Planning Consultants acting form the applicants have made the 
follow ing comments on the representations of Mr & Mrs Griggs:- 

 

  (1) The capital expenditure of £100,000 after 2006 does not relate to the 
   purchase of machinery and neither does it  demonstrate that there has 

   been an increase in activity. 

 
  (2) ID Planning have responded as follows:- 

 
  "The correspondence refers to noise exceeding the prescribed limits for 26 

  hours per week, with the suggestion being made that this means the cutting 

  operations are not condensed or that there are increased levels of cutting and 
  raw material processing.  The noise survey provides evidence that the daily 

  business  operations  result in a  breach of  noise condition. Mr Goodrick's 

  statement confirms that machines are  not used  continuously and work is 
  undertaken  efficiently.  Condition 10  only relates  to noise levels, and the 

  regularity or intensity of use of individual equipment is only relevant insofar as 

Page 114



AW/Dec11/ST10542 

  the noise that results from it to demonstrate the breach has occurred on a 

  daily basis." 
 

The case for the applicant may be summarised as follows:- 

 
  (i) Mr Goodrick has confirmed in his statutory declaration  w hen the main 

   machines  w ere  purchased  in a  list of  equipment.   These   w ere 

   purchased more than then years ago; 
 

  (ii) The  inclusion of   the   list of  equipment,  and   the evidence about 
   when   purchased, demonstrates the machines that are used by the 

   company have not changed   over  the   last   ten   years, or   been 

   replaced   by newer machinery which may have the potential to be 
   quieter. 

 

  (iii)  The noise survey provides evidence that the daily business operations 
   result in a breach of the noise condition. 

 

  (v) In paragraph 10 of his statutory declaration, Mr  Goodrick has stated 
   that the annual sales f igures show  a level of business activity w hich 

   has been consistent for the last 13 years.   

 
  (vi)  As the use of machinery contributes  to the  breach  of permitted noise 

   levels,   this evidence demonstrates   these   machines  have   not 

   changed and therefore as a result the associated noise levels have 
   in  all  probability  not  changed  over  the  ten year period prior to 1 

   December 2016. 

  
  (vii) Accordingly, the applicants case is that there has been a breach of the 

   noise condition for more than ten years prior to 1 December 2016. 
 

OTHER EVIDENCE 

 
Members are advised that Mr Paul Hunt, an Environmental Protection Officer monitored the 

application site for noise on 29 September 2015 and produced a report. A copy of the report 

is attached. 
 

His conclusion in the report includes the follow ing text in relation to the sources  of noise on 

the application site  : 
 

"The measurements and recordings show noise levels from activity at Whey Carr 
Farm did give rise to exceedence of the boundary noise limit of 45dB (LAeq 
15min) set by Condition 10 of Planning Decision 3/111/19C/FA. This was 
primarily due to the noise of various (at least two) extraction systems which 
produced steady levels of ~47 dB in one case and ~ 55dB in the other.” 
 

It also adds the follow ing text : 
 

“It seems that on this occasion at least there was only one person using machine 
tools at the site and activities appeared to be undertaken serially as opposed to 
multiple tasks and activities going on at the same time. E.g when the forklift was 
in use there was no sawing and extraction plant operating.” 

 

Page 115



AW/Dec11/ST10542 

"The main cause of breaches of the boundary noise limit is extraction equipment 
and the forklift. 
 
Extraction equipment is likely to operate for periods of greater than 15 minutes at 
a time (as indeed it did during this visit).” 
 

The response of the planning consultant for the applicant on the evidence of Mr Paul Hunt 

has been as follow s : 

 
(i) Mr Paul Hunt for the District Council  only  visited the neighbouring property and 

did not set foot in Mr Goodrick’s property so his know ledge of the operation of the 

business w as limited  and the time period of his noise monitoring w as short ; 
 

(ii) Mr Goodrick has employed 2-3 people from the very outset of business 

operations in 1993; 
 

(iii)  There is only one extraction system. 
 

 

8. CONCLUSION 
 

8.1 The evidence submitted in support of the application has been challenged by Mr & 

Mrs Griggs. 
 

8.2 The key question is considered to be could the applicant and any predecessors on 

the balance of probabilities have operated the business of the assembly of sectional 
timber buildings using the machinery identif ied to cut and w ork timber at the levels in 

the last ten years w ithout regularly breaching the noise condit ion ? 

 
8.3 The above question has been discussed w ith Environmental Health Off icers.  The 

conclusion reached has been that on the balance of probabilities the operation of the 

business w ould involve breaching the noise condition on a regular basis over the ten 
year period.  

 

8.4 Having review ed and carefully considered all the available evidence, it is concluded 
on the balance of probabilit ies that there has been a breach of the planning condit ion 

for a period in excess of ten years. 
 

 

9. LIMITATIONS 

LIMITATIONS  ON THE LAWFUL USE 

Guidance in the contents of Lawful Development Certif icate  is included in the 

National Planning Practice Guidance as follow s : 

 "Content of a certificate 

 What must a lawful development certificate include? 

 Details of what must be included in each type of lawful development 
 certificate can be found in section 191(5) or 192(3) of the Act. The prescribed 

 form can be found in Schedule 8 to the Town and Country Planning 

 (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. Precision in 

Page 116



AW/Dec11/ST10542 

 the terms of any certificate is vital, so there is no room for doubt about what 

 was lawful at a particular date, as any subsequent change may be assessed 
 against it. It is important to note that: 

• a certificate for existing use must include a description of the use, operations 

or other matter for which it is granted regardless of whether the matters fall 
within a use class. But where it is within a “use class”, a certificate must also 

specify the relevant “class”. In all cases, the description needs to be more 

than simply a title or label, if future problems interpreting it are to be avoided. 
The certificate needs to therefore spell out the characteristics of the matter so 

as to define it unambiguously and with precision. This is particularly important 
for uses which do not fall within any “use class” (ie “sui generis” use); and 

• where a certificate is granted for one use on a “planning unit” which is in 

mixed or composite use, that situation may need to be carefully reflected in 
the certificate. Failure to do so may result in a loss of control over any 

subsequent intensification of the certificated use. 

 Paragraph: 010 Reference ID: 17c-010-20140306 

 Revision date: 06 03 2014" 

The limitations w hich may be considered relevant on the available evidence are  as follow s : 

 
 (i)   With one exception of  the main morticing machine, w hich is located in the 

  building  to the rear  of the yard on the application site  the machinery w as 

  located and  used in the w orkshop; 
 

 (ii)   There has been one side loader used on the application site for loading and 

  unloading of vehicles. 
 

 (iii)    No machinery w as operated and no process w as carried out in breach of the 

   hours    of   use   condition  attached   to    planning  permission LPA Ref  
    3/111/19C/FA 

 
 (iv)   The planning unit is a mixed use and the Tow n and Country Planning (Use 

  Classes) Order 1987 as amended w ill not apply. Planning permission w ill be 

  needed for any material change of use.   
 

 (v) The location of the machinery used in breach of condition identif ied in this 

  report  to be restricted to specif ic areas identif ied in the certif icate w ith a plan. 
 

10. RECOMMENDATION 

 
10.1 Approval subject to the limitations identif ied above. 

 

 
Anthony Winship 

Council Solicitor  

Author:   Anthony Winship, Council Solicitor  
Telephone No:  01653 600666  ext: 267 

E-Mail Address: anthony.w inship@ryedale.gov.uk 
 

 

 

Page 117



AW/Dec11/ST10542 

Background Papers: 

 
File for application 16/01931/CLEUD dated  1 December 2016  w ith supporting evidence 

Page 118



Page 119



Visited The Old Forge, Sand Hutton  on 29.09.15 to undertake noise measurements and recordings 
using the Norsonic 140. 

Arrived at 0900h. 

Weather conditions, warm, dry & sunny, calm/still – no discernible wind or breeze. 

Set up the 140 in garden of the Old Forge near ‘The Shed’ which is a single storey cabin used to 
accommodate guests’approx 4m from boundary with Whey Carr Farm, adjacent to what appeared to 
be the main Timber Processing workshop.  One side of this outbuilding runs parallel to the boundary 
~2m beyond the boundary. 

 

I calibrated the Norsonic, the instrument response was satisfactory  and I made voice notes at the 
start of the measurement.  The first measurement started at 0910h and  took several one minute 
recordings during the measurement which continued for ~35 minutes until 0945h when there was a 
battery failure. 

Noise from Whey Carr seemed to be the sound of an extractor operating continuously and an 
intermittent machine saw.  Ambient soundscape  consisted of birdsong and the occasional passing 
motor vehicle.  The LAeq for the first 27 minutes of the measurement was 47dB.  The extractor went 
off after ~ 27 mins (a recording was made with the extractor off) and this resulted in an SPL 
reduction of ~ 6dB to result in an LAeq of ~41dB.  After a further 3 minutes a saw or plane started up 
(the extractor appeared to still be off) and operated continuously for ~ 3 mins increasing the LAeq to 
~51dB.  Just before he complainant left at ~0940h, she told me noise levels from Whey Carr had 
been relatively low so far this morning. 

After replacing the batteries and carrying out a calibration check I commenced a second 
measurement at ~0947h.  This measurement lasted for ~15 minutes and included several several 
one minute recordings. 

Page 120



An extractor was audible early in this measurement.  Intermittent wood working machinery also 
audible, this increased the SPL by ~10dB to ~ > or =55dB.  Saw tended to operate for a second or two 
every 30 seconds.  At ~1000h a machine/extractor started up that increased the LAeq for the rest of 
(the final 2 minutes) of the measurement to ~55dB from a value of 48dB.  The LAeq for the entire 
measurement was 50dB. 

 

A third measurement was started at 1002h.  The extractor that started up towards the end of the 
previous measurement was still operating and was presumably the extractor for the particular 
machine tool now in use.  The extractor gave rise to a fairly steady noise level of ~55dBA which 
increased to ~ 57dB and up to 60dB when the saw was in use.  Several recordings made during this 
measurement. The extractor noise  was continuous for the first 16 mins of the measurement, the 
noise level was very steady with intermittent increases of ~2 to 3 dB associated with sawing. Overall 
this  resulted in an LAeq of 56dB for the 16 minute period..  The noise from timber processing 
dominated the soundscape, passing traffic was not audible and there was no other discernible 
extraneous noise. 

The extractor stopped at ~1019 and there was no noise audible noise from processing operations.  
The SPL dropped to below 45dBA. 

 

A fourth measurement (duration 15 mins) was started at 1019. There was no extraction or 
processing activity audible at the start and for the first ~8 mins, LAeq = 39Db.Passing traffic now 
audible in the background.  A radio playing music at Whey Carr was also just discernible now.  
Passing vehicles increased the SPL transiently to ~44dB typically.  Processing machinery started again 
at ~1027 and LAeq increased to 47dB for the remainder of the me asurement.  The noise from Whey 
Carr consisted of an extractor (not the noisiest one) and intermittent machinery (saw). 

 

A fifth measurement was started at 1035h.  Noise from Whey Carr similar to the end of last 
measurement, extraction, intermittent saw (every ~30secsand occasional bang (not loud bangs).  
This continued for 13 mins over which period the LAeq was 48dB.  An engine then started up ( 
forklift) mainly at low revs but occasional higher revs.  This increased noise level with an LAeq of 
57dB for the last minute of the measurement.  The batteries then ran down and the Norsonic 
switched off.  The ocerall LAeq for the 14 minute measurement was 50dB.  

 

Conclusions 

 

The measurements and recordings show noise levels from activity at Whey Carr Farm did give rise to 
exceedence of the boundary noise limit of 45dB (LAeq 15min) set by Condition 10 of Planning 
Decision 3/111/19C/FA.  This was primarily due to the noise of various (at least two) extraction 

Page 121



systems which produced steady levels of ~47 dB in one case and ~ 55dB in the other.  The noise from 
what is presumed to be a diesel engine forklift truck exceeded this (57dB).   

It seems that on this occasion at least there was only one person using machine tools at the site and 
activities appeared to be undertaken serially as opposed to multiple tasks and activities going on at 
the same time.  E.g  when the forklift was in use there was no sawing and extraction plant operating.   

I spoke to the complainants gardener who stated that the noise from activity undertaken during my 
visit was typical of what he had observed previously during weekday working hours.. He has been 
visiting to carry out gardening duties regularly for the last 18 months. 

The main cause of breaches of the boundary noise limit is extraction equipment and the forklift.  
Extraction equipment is likely to operate for periods of greater than 15 minutes at a time (as indered 
it did during this visit).  It is difficult to gauge forklift usage but it did give rise to significant noise 
levels. 

Page 122



RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE  SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS 
 

PERIOD  09.01.2017TO 03.02.2017 

  
 

 

1.  

Application No: 16/00364/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Foxholes Parish Council 

Applicant: Ms Eleanor Hindby-Smith 

Location: Foxholes Methodist Church Main Street Foxholes Driffield North Yorkshire YO25 

3QF  

Proposal: 0Change of use, alteration and extension of former chapel to form a four bedroom 

dwelling to include formation of a mezzanine floor, erection of a two storey 

extension to the south elevation and formation of vehicular access 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2.  

Application No: 16/00714/FUL    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Phillip Walker 

Location: Land North Of Cemetery Whitby Road Pickering North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of a three bedroom dwelling with attached double garage to include 

formation of vehicular access 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

3.  

Application No: 16/01664/OUT    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Swinton Parish Council 

Applicant: JF & TY Monkman (Mr J Monkman) 

Location: Land Off Malton Road Swinton Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural workers dwelling (site area 0.063ha) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

4.  

Application No: 16/01688/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Brass Castle Brewery 

Location: 10 Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7AB  

Proposal: Change of use and alterations from a retail unit (Use Class A1) to a drinking 

establishment (Use Class A4) to include rebuilding of single storey extension to rear 

elevation (part-retrospective) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  

Application No: 16/01768/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Luttons Parish Council 

Applicant: Ms K Lovell 

Location: 3 Hillside Way West Lutton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8TE  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to south west elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6.  

Application No: 16/01778/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Rillington Parish Council 

Applicant: A & D Sturdy Ltd 

Location: Land At Manor View Rillington Malton North Yorkshire   Page 123

Agenda Item 14



Proposal: Erection of a detached three-bedroom dwelling with attached double garage 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  

Application No: 16/01785/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Mr C Atkinson 

Location: Yorkshire Laundry Service Ings Lane Kirkbymoorside YO62 6DN  

Proposal: Erection of building to form an additional laundry processing facility 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  

Application No: 16/01787/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Howsham Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr James Arkle 

Location: The Old School Village Street Howsham Malton YO60 7PH  

Proposal: Erection of a part two storey/part single storey rear extension with external terrace to 

rear to include removal of existing conservatory 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

9.  

Application No: 16/01788/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Howsham Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr James Arkle 

Location: The Old School  Village Street Howsham Malton YO60 7PH 

Proposal: Erection of a part two storey/part single storey rear extension with external terrace to 

rear to include removal of existing conservatory and external and internal alterations 

to existing dwelling to include replacement windows to north and east elevations and 

replacement rainwater goods 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

10.  

Application No: 16/01821/LBC    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mrs Annabelle Hoste 

Location: Howe Farm Old Malton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6RG  

Proposal: Replacement of 3no. first floor single glazed timber sliding sash windows with 3no. 

double glazed timber sliding sash windows 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

11.  

Application No: 16/01843/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Allerston Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Gary Watson 

Location: Bound Cliff Farm Buildings Back Lane Allerston Pickering North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of agricultural building for the housing of livestock following demolition of 

existing agricultural buildings 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

12.  

Application No: 16/01851/TELN56    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Rillington Parish Council 

Applicant: Arqiva (Mr Raymond Adams) 

Location: Telephone Exchange Scarborough Road Rillington Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

8LH  

Proposal: Erection of a 15m high telecommunications streetpole with associated 2no. dishes, 

3no. shrouded antennas, 4no. cabinets and ancillary equipment fixed on a concrete 

foundation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Page 124



13.  

Application No: 16/01857/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Scagglethorpe Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr John Smyth 

Location: Greystones Main Street Scagglethorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8DT  

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

14.  

Application No: 16/01866/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Staxton/Willerby Parish Council 

Applicant: E M & B J Stonehouse (Mr B Stonehouse) 

Location: May Farm Main Street Staxton Scarborough North Yorkshire YO12 4RZ  

Proposal: To crown lift T5 and T7 (ash) to provide a clearance of 5.2m from ground level over 

the public highway and 2.3m over the adjacent footpath, all within TPO No. 252/199 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

15.  

Application No: 16/01874/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Martin Redgard 

Location: Methodist Chapel  Potter Hill Pickering YO18 8AA 

Proposal: External alterations to include installation of 3no. sets of double doors to replace the 

windows on the south elevation of the church hall, gated access to the side of the 

Chapel with erection of canopies over the gate and the rear east elevation doors to the 

church hall, replacement or refurbishment of the timber sash windows to the chapel 

east and west elevations, installation of lighting and replacement internally 

illuminated notice boards to the front elevation and window and door alterations to 

the church hall ancillary facilities 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

16.  

Application No: 16/01876/HOUSE    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Adrian Ward 

Location: 6 Herongate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8TH  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to east elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

17.  

Application No: 16/01880/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Gilling East Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs B Hazell 

Location: Grimston Grange  Yearsley To Coulton Road Gilling East YO62 4HX 

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension and garden wall to west elevation. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

18.  

Application No: 16/01886/ADV    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Food Programme Delivery Orchid Group Co Op Food 

Location: 99 Eastgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7DY  

Proposal: Display of 1no. fascia sign with internally illuminated logo, 1no. externally 

illuminated pole mounted projecting sign, 3no. non-illuminated wall mounted 

aluminium panels and 1no. non-illuminated pole mounted aluminium panel 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

19.  

Application No: 16/01898/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Punch Taverns Ltd. (Mr Shanley) Page 125



Location: Royal Oak  26 Market Place Malton YO17 7LX 

Proposal: External signage, re-painting and lighting to include 1no. externally illuminated 

individual letter fascia name sign, 1no. externally illuminated hanging sign, 2no. 

non-illuminated removable amenity boards fixed to dummy shutters, 3no. LED 

floodlights and 1no. copper entrance lantern 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

20.  

Application No: 16/01899/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Ampleforth Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs John Dobson 

Location: The Magpies Station Road Ampleforth YO62 4DG  

Proposal: Erection of a part two storey/part first floor extension to south and west elevations 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

21.  

Application No: 16/01914/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mrs A Young 

Location: 4 West Lodge Gardens Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7YJ  

Proposal: T2 - Cherry - Remove tree due to a very thin crown with large pieces of deadwood. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

22.  

Application No: 16/01920/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Andrew Ferguson 

Location: 5 Yorkersgate Malton YO17 7AA 

Proposal: Change of use of retail unit (Use Class A1) to a mixed use of cycling products shop 

(A1) and cafe (A3) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

23.  

Application No: 16/01924/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Thixendale Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Burton 

Location: Thixendale Gritts  Thixendale Road Fridaythorpe Malton YO25 9SA 

Proposal: Erection of a replacement agricultural storage building 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

24.  

Application No: 16/01928/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Applicant: The Hon. Simon Howard 

Location: Welham Hall Welham Road Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9QF  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to north elevation to form sun room 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

25.  

Application No: 16/01929/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Welburn (Malton) Parish Council 

Applicant: Dr Amy-Jane Beer 

Location: Cragg Cottage Castle Howard Station Road Welburn Malton YO60 7EW  

Proposal: Erection of a two storey side extension together with replacement of porch roof 

following demolition of existing attached storage building (revised details to refusal 

15/01262/HOUSE dated 18.12.2015) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

26.  

Application No: 16/01934/73A    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Gilling East Parish Council Page 126



Applicant: Stirling Ventures Ltd (Mr Julian Pilling) 

Location: Valley Farm  Yearsley To Coulton Road Gilling East YO62 4HS 

Proposal: Variation of Condition 17 of approval 15/01105/FUL dated 23.11.2015 to replace 

drawing nos AR20 01 C Site Plan Proposed, AR50 01 House Plans Proposed, AR50 

02 Elevations Proposed and AR50 03 A Sections Proposed with corresponding 

amended drawings - revisions relating to design, layout and window arrangement 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

27.  

Application No: 16/01935/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Pickering Town Council 

Location: Land At Community Park  The Nurseries Whitby Road Pickering North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of a timber garden shed (max floor area 4.5m2) on each of 20no. allotments 

at the Community Park 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

28.  

Application No: 16/01938/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: North Yorkshire Moors Railway 

Location: Mulberries Coffee Shop 5 Bridge Street Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8DT  

Proposal: Change of use of first floor retail premises (Use Class A1) to form an office in 

connection with North Yorkshire Moors Railway (Use Class B1) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

29.  

Application No: 16/01942/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mrs Reynolds 

Location: 122 Eastgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7DW 

Proposal: Change of use of ground floor retail unit (Use Class A1) to additional domestic living 

space (Use Class C3) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

30.  

Application No: 16/01955/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mrs Reynolds 

Location: 122 Eastgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7DW 

Proposal: External alterations to include installation of replacement timber door to front 

elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

31.  

Application No: 16/01959/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Helmsley Town Council 

Applicant: Mr J Lindeman 

Location: Corogan House 37 Pottergate Helmsley YO62 5BX  

Proposal: Erection of two storey side extension following removal of existing single storey 

attached garage 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

32.  

Application No: 16/01981/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Yorkshire Housing 

Location: Flats At Sturdy Court Kirkbymoorside North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Replacement of existing timber external entrance doors with aluminium entrance 

doors 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ Page 127



 

33.  

Application No: 16/01985/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Danny Morbey 

Location: 4 Oldfield Court Kirkbymoorside YO62 6AE  

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension with external decking and steps 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

34.  

Application No: 16/01990/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Pickering Town Council (Mr Andrew Husband) 

Location: 22 Market Place Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7AE  

Proposal: External alterations to include affixing of replacement notice board to front elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

35.  

Application No: 16/01993/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Fitzwilliam Trust Corporation (Mr T Storrar) 

Location: 18 Castle Howard Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7AY  

Proposal: To carry out crown lift to provide a clearance of 8m from ground level to T5 Oak 

within TPO No. 4/1977 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

36.  

Application No: 16/01995/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate (Mr Roddy Bushell) 

Location: Land Adj 39 Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Replacement of the existing tarmacadam surface at the site entrance with a central 

area of reclaimed Yorkshire cobbles with reclaimed Yorkstone flags to either side, 

regrading of part of this area to reduce the gradient off the public highway and 

tarmacadam resurfacing of the remainder of the site as indicated on Drawing 62-01B 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

37.  

Application No: 16/01996/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Thornton-le-Dale Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Chester Bosomworth 

Location: Willow Grange Hurrell Lane Thornton-Le-Dale Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 

7QY  

Proposal: Erection of two storey extension to north and east elevations and conservatory to 

south elevation following demolition of existing entrance lobby 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

38.  

Application No: 16/02002/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Donald Low 

Location: Sandreith 37 Middlecave Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7NE  

Proposal: To remove limb extending over rose bed, and reduce overall dimensions of the crown 

by a maximum of 2-3m of T7 (Beech), and reduce overall dimensions of T9 (Beech) 

and T10 (Purple leafed beech) by a maximum of 2-3m, all within TPO No. 

319A/2009. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

39.  

Application No: 16/02003/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Scrayingham Parish Council Page 128



Applicant: Mr S Wood 

Location: Poplar House Farm  Leppington Lane Leppington YO17 9RL 

Proposal: Erection of an open sided general purpose agricultural storage building for straw, 

feed and other farm produce 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

40.  

Application No: 16/02007/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Heslerton Parish Council 

Applicant: W Nutt & Son Ltd (Andrew & Tom) 

Location: 1 And 2 Carr Farm Cottages Carr House Lane East Heslerton Malton North 

Yorkshire YO17 8RR 

Proposal: Erection of two-storey side extensions to both 1 and 2 Carr Farm Cottages following 

demolition of existing side extensions 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

41.  

Application No: 16/02028/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs T Pallister 

Location: 9 Greengage Close Malton YO17 7FP 

Proposal: Erection of bay window to front elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

42.  

Application No: 17/00004/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Ms A Webb And Mr G McKay 

Location: Baranaoil Swineherd Lane Kirkbymoorside YO62 6LR  

Proposal: Erection of rear external steps and veranda with handrails 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Page 129


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of meeting held on 17 January 2017
	5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee
	6 16/01881/MFUL - Spaniel Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe
	2 - Revised Site Location Plan
	3 -Site Layout Plan
	4 - Revised Plan
	5 - Design And Access Statement
	6 - Parish

	7 16/01950/MFUL - Common Farm, Upper Helmsley
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Proposed Block Plan
	4 - Proposed Floor Plans
	5 - Proposed Elevation
	6 - Design And Access Statement
	7 - Parish

	8 16/01870/FUL - Land Adj To Dhekelia, Moor Lane, Broughton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Revised Plan
	4 - Design And Access Statement

	9 16/01887/73A - Land At Corner Of Chapel Road And Forkers Lane, Settrington
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Plan
	4 - Proposed Plans
	5 - Additional Plan
	6 - Supporting Document
	7 - Parish

	10 16/01839/MFUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Plan
	4 - Proposed Plans
	5 -Additional Plan
	6 - Design And Access Statement
	7 - Supporting Statement
	8 - Parish

	11 14/00949/FUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton
	2 - Enforcement Report
	3 - Report 14-949
	4 - Site Location Plan 14-949
	5 - Proposed Plans 14-949
	6 - Minutes

	12 16/01931/CLEUD - Whey Carr Farm, Main Street, Sand Hutton
	2 - Site Plan
	3 - Appendix 1

	14 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.

